Silverton

VILLAGE OF SILVERTON

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL TO BE HELD
November 10, 2021
MEMORIAL HALL -203 LAKE AVE. & ONLINE
7:00 PM

British Columbia |

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON ACKNOWLEDGES THE INDIGENOUS
PEOPLES ON WHOSE TRADITIONAL TERRITORIES WE STAND

C. ADDITION OF LATE ITEMS IF ANY

D. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

E. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES

1. Minutes of Regular Council Meeting October 13, 2021
2. Minutes of Special Council Meeting October 20, 2021

3. Minutes of Committee of the Whole Meeting October 28, 2021

F. DELEGATIONS AND PETITIONS

Megan Chadwick, Executive Director, Arrow Slocan Tourism



G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS/BUSINESS ARISING

None at this time.

H. NEW BUSINESS

1. RDCK — West Resource Recovery Committee Meeting — RE: Option 2

Village of Silverton RDCK Director Leah Main to speak to item H1 regarding the
highlighted option number 2 of closing the Silverton Recycling Depot.

2. Schedule 2 Silverton council meetings a month

Recommendation brought forward by Councillor L. Main:

That the Village of Silverton Council schedule a Regular Meeting on the second
Wednesday of each month and one Council Special or CoTW on the fourth Wednesday

of each month, and that this be a regular ongoing schedule beginning as soon as
possible.

I. CORRESPONDENCE FOR INFORMATION

FrontCounterBC — RE: Referral Request on the Zincton Proposal

The Silver Standard

Telus RE: 911 Service

Ministry of Municipal Affairs RE CleanBC Roadmap

Provincial Director of Child Welfare RE: Adoption Awareness Month
Village of New Denver RE: Kootenay Savings Credit Union service delivery

AN S e

J. COUNCIL REPORTS

1. Mayor Colin Ferguson
e Recreation Commission No. 6

2. Councillor Clarence denBok
e Slocan Lake Arts Council Liaison
e Recreation Commission No. 6, Alternate

November 10, 2021 Regular Meeting of Council Agenda




3. Councillor Tanya Gordon

Ktunaxa Kinbasket Treaty Advisory Committee (TAC)
Health Committee — Slocan District Chamber of Commerce
RDI Climate Adaptation project Team

Rat Control Liaison

CBBC Liaison Alternate

Municipal Emergency Management, Alternate

4. Councillor Leah Main

RDCK Director for the Village of Silverton

West Kootenay Boundary Regional Hospital Board

Rosebery Parklands and Trails Commission

Winlaw Regional and Nature Park Commission

Slocan Valley Economic Development Commission

FCM Board

CBBC Liaison

RDI Climate Adaptation project Team

Health Committee Alternate — Slocan District Chamber of Commerce
Ktunaxa Kinbasket Treaty Advisory Committee (TAC) Alternate

5. Councillor Arlene Yofonoff

Slocan District Chamber of Commerce
Composting Project Liaison (Healthy Community Society of the North S.V.)
RDI Climate Adaptation project Team, Alternate

K. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

K1. CAO Report

K2. CFO RE: 3" Quarter Report

L. BYLAWS AND POLICY

1. Personnel policy — addition of new Statutory Holiday, addition/changes highlighted

Recommendation:
That the Village of Silverton Council adopt Policy No. P - 1 as presented.

November 10. 2021 Regular Meeting of Council Agenda




2. Electronic Meetings and Attendance — RE: Council Procedural Bylaw

M. PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD

Terms of reference as per the Procedure Bylaw includes;

e The maximum time allotted is two (2) minutes.

o The Public Input is for items on the Council Agenda only.

o The Public Input Period provides an opportunity for public input only,
without expectation of response from Council.

N. IN CAMERA MEETING: there will be an In-Camera Meeting at this time. This meeting

will be closed to the public in accordance with Sections 90 — 1 (c), employee relations, (i)
legal.

The Regular Meeting recessed at pm in order to conduct the Closed Meeting.

The Regular Meeting reconvened at pm

O. ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD FROM IN CAMERA

P. ADJOURNMENT

November 10, 2021 Regular Meeting of Council Agenda

== s = e e e e e ————————————V—V_—_—_———— - - .- ——— ————————————1



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING HELD ONLINE ON
WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 13, 2021 AT 7:00PM

PRESENT: Mayor C. Ferguson, Councillors C. denBok, T. Gordon, L. Main, A. Yofonoff
ABSENT:
STAFF: C. Jury, Chief Financial Officer, H. Elliott, Chief Administrative Officer

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Colin Ferguson Called the Meeting to Order at 7:07 pm.

B. THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON ACKNOWLEDGES THE INDIGENOUS
PEOPLES ON WHOSE TRADITIONAL TERRITORIES WE STAND

C. ADDITION OF LATE ITEMS IF ANY

H3 — Mountain Man Mike’s Application RE: Letter of Support

D. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

110/2021 - Moved, seconded that the Agenda be adopted as amended.

CARRIED

E. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES

111/2021 — Moved, seconded That the Regular Council Meeting Minutes
September 8, 2021 accepted as presented.

CARRIED

F. DELEGATIONS AND PETITIONS

None at this time.

£1



OCTOBER 13,2021 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS/BUSINESS ARISING

G1. COUNCIL APPOINTMENTS

112/2021 — Moved, seconded That the Village of Silverton approve the following

Council appointments:

1. Slocan Lake Arts Council Liaison — Councillor C. denBok

2. Recreation #6 Commission, Council Representatives — Mayor C. Ferguson
Appointed; Councillor C. denBok Alternate;

AND FURTHER;

That the Village of Silverton advertise in the Valley Voice the two open
appointments for community members in the Village of Silverton on the
Recreation #6 Regional District of Central Kootenay Commission.

CARRIED

G2. UBCM CRI FIRESMART COMMUNITY FUNDING

113/2021 — Moved, seconded WHEREAS The Village of Silverton supports a
local, sub-regional approach to FireSmart activities in the Slocan Valley; AND

WHEREAS the Village of Slocan and the Village of New Denver will be
partnering municipalities in this application; AND

WHEREAS the Village of Silverton is willing to provide overall grant
management for this application;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED That the Council of the Village of Silverton
supports being the lead proponent in the application to the UBCM CRI FireSmart
Community Funding in partnership with the Village of Slocan and the Village of
New Denver;

AND FURTHER The Village of Silverton supports the program for funding up
to $150,000 as the Silverton share of the total application up to $450,000.

CARRIED

G3. RDCK WOODSTOVE EXCHANGE PROGRAM 2022

114/2021 — Moved, seconded That the Village of Silverton Council agrees to
participate in the RDCK Woodstove Exchange Program in 2022;



OCTOBER 13,2021 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

AND FURTHER that the Village of Silverton allocates up to $300 to contribute
up to three (3) $100 rebates for the stove exchange within the Village of

Silverton.
CARRIED

G4. ELECTRONIC MEETINGS AND ELECTONIC ATTENDANCE - UPDATE

Staff provided a verbal update stating they continue their research into the possible
changes to the Council Procedural Bylaw and will present to Council when the
information has been compiled.

H. NEW BUSINESS

H1. BOULEVARD CLEAN UP REQUEST

115/2021 - Moved, seconded That the Village of Silverton Council instruct Silverton
staff to remove all the excess (except the traditional grass) vegetation (trees, shrubbery,
vegetation) from the boulevard on Hume, as requested in correspondence to the
Village.

CARRIED

H2. RDCK KOOTENAY LAKE WEST TRANSIT SERVICE BYLAW

116/2021 - Moved, seconded Therefore Be It Resolved that the Village of
Silverton Council approve the Letter of Consent for the Kootenay Lake West
Transit Service Amendment Bylaw No. 2707, 2021; AND

FURTHER that Director Leah Main and CAO Elliott sign the Letter of Consent, as
requested by the Regional District of Central Kootenay, on behalf of the Village of
Silverton.

CARRIED



OCTOBER 13,2021 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

I. CORRESPONDENCE FOR INFORMATION

117/2021 - Moved, seconded WHEREAS the Year of the Garden celebrates the
Centennial of Canada’s horticulture sector; and

WHEREAS gardens and gardening contribute to the quality of life of our region and
create safe and healthy places where people can come together; and

WHEREAS gardens and gardening have helped us face the challenges of the COVID-19
pandemic; and

WHEREAS the Village of Silverton is proud to have a rich tradition of horticultural
excellence with numerous gardens throughout the Village; and

WHEREAS the Year of the Garden will highlight and celebrate the important
contributions of our local gardening organizations and horticulture professionals and
businesses; and

WHEREAS Communities in Bloom, in collaboration with the Canadian Garden Council,
invites all municipalities to celebrate the Year of the Garden;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT The Village of Silverton hereby
PROCLAIMS 2022 as the "Year of the Garden" in celebration of the contribution of
gardens and gardening to the development of our country, our region and the lives of our
citizens in terms of health, quality of life and environmental challenges; AND

THAT the Saturday before Father’s Day, June 18 in 2022, be recognized as Garden Day
in The Village of Silverton as a legacy of Canada’s Year of the Garden 2022.

CARRIED

118/2021 - Moved, seconded That the Village of Silverton donate one dollar per
resident, $195.00 to the Village of Lytton as financial support.

CARRIED

Council directs staff to provide information regarding CIP/APP community
funding to the Castlegar & District Community Services Society regarding their
request for funding.



OCTOBER 13, 2021 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

J. COUNCIL REPORTS

Received for information.

K. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

Received for information.

L. BYLAWS AND POLICY

None at this time.

M. PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD

Judith Maltz commented on Silverton working with New Denver regarding COVID 19
clinics and communications to the public.

N. IN CAMERA MEETING:

The Regular Meeting recessed at 8:28 pm in order to conduct the Closed Meeting.

The Regular Meeting reconvened at 9:08 pm.



OCTOBER 13, 2021 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

O. ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD FROM IN CAMERA

The Village of Silverton Council recognizes the new Statutory Holiday, National Day for
Truth and Reconciliation, and directs staff to update the Personnel Policy with the addition
of this new Statutory Holiday.

P. ADJOURNMENT

119/2021 — Moved that Council adjourn at 9:08pm.

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

Mayor C. Ferguson Chief Administrative Officer



F2

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING HELD ONLINE ON
WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 20, 2021 AT 4:00PM

PRESENT: Mayor C. Ferguson, Councillors T. Gordon, L. Main
ABSENT: Councillor C. denBok, A. Yofonoff
STAFF: H. Elliott, Chief Administrative Officer

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Colin Ferguson Called the Meeting to Order at 4:04 pm.

B. THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON ACKNOWLEDGES THE INDIGENOUS
PEOPLES ON WHOSE TRADITIONAL TERRITORIES WE STAND

C. ADDITION OF LATE ITEMS IF ANY

None at this time.

D. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

120/2021 - Moved, seconded that the Agenda be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

N. IN CAMERA MEETING:

The Regular Meeting recessed at 4:06 pm in order to conduct the Closed Meeting.

The Regular Meeting reconvened at 5:03 pm.



OCTOBER 20, 2021 MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

O. ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD FROM IN CAMERA

None at this time.

P. ADJOURNMENT

121/2021 — Moved that Council adjourn at 5:03pm.

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

Mayor C. Ferguson Chief Administrative Officer



MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL MEETING HELD
ONLINE ON THURSDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2021 AT 7:00PM

PRESENT: Mayor C. Ferguson, Councillors C. denBok, T. Gordon, L. Main, A. Yofonoff
ABSENT:

STAFF: H. Elliott, Chief Administrative Officer

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Ferguson called the meeting to order at 7:07pm.

B. THE VILLAGE OF SILVERTON ACKNOWLEDGES THE INDIGENOUS
PEOPLES ON WHOSE TRADITIONAL TERRITORIES WE STAND

C. ADDITION OF LATE ITEMS IF ANY

None at this time.

D. DELEGATION

None at this time.

E. DISCUSSION

E1l. COUNCIL PRIORITIES 2018-2022

Council discussion regarding Council Priorities for 2018-2022 and projects for the 2021 budget.

E3



OCTOBER 28, 2021 Committee of Whole Council Meeting Minutes

E2. CAMPRGROUND PROJECT 2021 DISCUSSION

Council discussed staff’s proposal for ordering maple trees for Lakeside Campground, directing
staff to look into having a couple of oak trees and to stay within the $12,500 budget range
($500/tree, inclusive of all costs including labour and soil and delivery).

F. ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 7:43 pm.

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

Mayor C. Ferguson Chief Administrative Officer



A

uolejussald 1oUunoD) | c0¢

WUSUNO| UBDOIS MOLY



10129410 SAIINI9X3]

ue pue sioldaJi[ JO pJeog Jaquaw ZT J931un|oA e AQ 1YBISISAD w_m_uw_n_n_<

pue|ssoy

~wsunol ‘95015|9A3Y WSLINOL ‘Wwslino| 9ye7 Aeuaiooy UOS|IaN \ﬁ_U uedols
‘Je39)358D) UoIIRUIISI(Q (St Yons OINQ ,I9A3] AAlunWWoD, J13U10

WSIJNO| S31Y00Yy AeUS100Y v HoyiaAlS

epeue) UOI1RUIISAQ Ose)

(epeue) ssoJoe sa0uUlA0Jd JBYI0 ||B pue) Dg UOI1eUIISS( e
:S9pN|oUl 1BY1 JJomawed) QINQ |BI121J40 SUT UIYIIM SHIOAA

sweaJls yueld Dg uoeunsag ysnoayy uipund |eUOIPPY

IAUDQ MIN
Alaqoasoy

eale pajeusdisap JNo Joj (Xe131sangd
|210Y /LAYIN) Xel 12141sIQ [euol3ay g [edIdIUNIA %7 241 JO 1UdIdIodY

dsnyeN g ueso|s
J9AUS(J MBN ‘UOLIBA|IS JO SB3R||IA D'gH SeaJe DAY siuasaiday .

A12120S 11,01d-UON

(OINQ) uoileziuediQ 3ullayJe|n UOI3eUINSSQ

MBINSAQ) [RUCBZILUBDIO)



IS S1y1 UoISSas buiuup|d 216310415 TZOZ 4NO 03 PIDMIOS YOO| 3/

uolijeuissp
Aep-i3InwW ‘punoJi-1eaA e se uoi3aJl Jno 0} |9ABJ] 0] UOIFUUI pue ‘Jo
SS9UBJEME 9SBIIOUI - WSIINO) dgeuleISNS UOSESS Jno4 :|e0o) Iy |

31| 40 Ajljenb sai1uNWWOI UNO Yd1uus 03 ALOU0IS JOJISIA S,u013al
Jno ajowoud pue Joddns ‘dojanap Ajgeuleisns 01 9ALIIS TUOISSIA

Aduelqin
AYlunwwod pue AlljelA 21WOUO0I3 [BJ0] 0} JOINGLIIUOD Juepod W
ue se paziugodas Sulaq a|Iym sanjeA Ajlunwiwod 10adsay :UOISIA

*UOI123J41P 13 SNJ0J S,uol1ez|uesio
INO WJiyje 01 ||e} yoea uoissas Suluue|d 2181e.1S pleog

e
i, o

w®>_y&_go
® Ueld Olbe1ens




sjueJ8 JusWdo|aAdp 195Se pue UoIIINPOId JUSIUOD SNOLIBA PBAISISY

¢T/TT0T 40} pawllpuod — 12/020¢
J0J Jueid weugold 3uipund aAieldadoo) (DgQd) Dg uoijeulIsaq paAladay

SOINQ 42Y30 yum sugiedwed
dAIleI0GE[|0D Bulpn|oul ‘suoilowold pue sudiedwed |euoseas }|ing

uoi3aJ 8y} 01 BIpaW |2ABJ} PIISOH
ugiedwed A[nyoadsal apu, s,0g ayig UIBIUNOA dY3 ul paledidilled

w02 IXARUS100Y
pue wod MipAeuslooy sa3is uojzowoJld Jaulied [euoldsds paulof

03pIA 13 0j0yd — Jua3lu0d |e13Ip ulinbae panupuo)
(2gnLNoA Y481IM] Yoogaded ‘weideisul) sa|ljold eipaja [e100S 3ulp|ing

4e33]158) UOI1BUIISI(Q YlIM
ugiedwed sayemollyaJlo|dx3g ue Joj Sutpuny Jaunied DgQ PaAISIaYy

uSiedwed pue 133s0d siauuew Ailunodyoeq ,90eJ} OU BAedT,

90YSMOUS g
IS DX ‘@3n0Y 1003 1S3 ‘el |ied — sdew Alelaunyl |euoi8al ¢ padojaaaq

PayoUNe| WO UBJO|SMOLIE'MMM 31ISCIM |BUOIBaY

:S3Yy31y3iH

MEINSH Ul JBOA



SVELTIVY SONIYAS 10K ONITIGOWMONS

$S3I¥OLS V20T

avod IHL VL ,

NVD2O1S MOYdV

.....
YILTISMIN D018 ALINAWWOD  dINLVNQOR  SIHOLS TYD01  SdIYLavoy  ONINNV didL

WO2'Ued0|SMOLIB'MMM

s3Ul1SI| uoIlEPOWILIOIIE pUR SSaUISNg

sisod 30|g

$924N0S3J J3Y10 3§ 343y 198 01 MOH

UOI1BWIOUI UOIIRLISIA 3]qISUOdsal i3 20el| ON 9Aed],

UOI1eW.I0)U]
24n3nd %3 sue ‘AJoisIy ‘uoilealdal JoopINQ

dii|-e-yoog, ‘sa1401s
|e20]| ‘Suiuue|d diy ysnoayy uonowoud ssauisng

S9oualiadxa |e20| ‘1ed ‘Aels 01 aiaypn

uoljewJour a14103ds Allunwiwod pue |euoiday

:S403ISIA 40 UoIIDWIOfUl SaPN|IU|

"120Z AjJes ul pa3a|dwod uswdo|sAsp pue udisaq

SYSOEM



"S9oudIadxe |euoidal 3unydiysy
SO9PIA SISOy Jey) [auueyd agnnoj pado|aAap Ajzuaday :aqnNoA

UBDO|SMOJIE @)
"SI9MO||0} JUSPISaI pue JU3PISaI-UoU
YyHm an3ojelp 03 Ayunyioddo pue uoileWwIOJUl SSPIAOI 491 UM]

UBJ0|SMOIIRLISIA®D)

'SIUBPISDI-UOU JO} Y2JB3S UOITBWIOLU| 10BIUOD SS9IIE

Asea moj|y "uoI1BW.IOUI |eUOIIEZIUBSIO PUB STUBAD ‘UOJIRWIOUI
|euoi8aJ apinoid 03 SIOYISIA PUB SIUBPISaI 1k Paladie] yoogaded

UBDO|SMOJIRH

UBDO|SMOJJIBYISIND

"1eWJ0y4 |eNSIA

a3e3ua 01 Asea AjpuaiJ} e Ul uolew.ojul pue Assdew |euol3ay
‘suolye|ndod |e20| pue |BJ0J-UOU 03 Yoeasino Alewlld :uleideisu|

s|]auueyd uno 3uip|ing .m__o®_>_ _.m_OOw




Pty i et

- 3
-y 1 - s T ey
B L e e |
L e ) — o —
A ) | ]
-

'S9SSaUISNQ Pa1SaJalul pue SI91ua) SI0YSIA
01 934} papiaoid pue palulld sjelalew ||y

N ]

oL Ay g T b 1 B
..ﬂ....f b 1 Y 1L l_.u_h._-ll! e
- g s, ]
e I e W et b T
bl e L

}00QapIND |euoiday Juawdojanap uf

dey\ Adesaull] 91n0Y 100 1SOMN e

deln |led] |leY e

de|A 90Ysmous 1 DS AJJunoD) SSOUD)

191504 92BJ| OU 9AR3T

i Lie)e|00) Julld



D1j4BJ] JOIUIM 19 UOSEIS J9P|NOYS asealdu| 7
Jawwins —juswa8euew uoneunsaq T
s|eoo

UOI129(|0D Blep pue Ydieasay
S91J03S eIpawW [9AB4]

SJ0109s Aay a10woud 03 sudledwe)
uo11ISINboy 03pIA %3 a3ew|

— N < W

Juswdo|aAs(g 401038
Ssn204 A393e.3s

SPOL) ¥ SNOO4 JUeUN))



‘uolzowoJd Joj pappe pue PaljIIuAP] 3Q 03 BNUIIUOD SI01IS |BUOIIPPY

(suol1ed0| 13 S2139100S adejlay
‘Uopues ‘uedo|s AJaA|IS) AJolsly [euoldad ‘@anynD 7§ Sy — Suuds

(INH ™S @4e7 nwwns
‘s3uluds 10y ‘@0Ysmous ‘1S DX) SaJNIUSAPY AJIUNOD) 1UCIH — JSUIM

(Ado3s1y ‘@un3nd ‘s8ul4a40 |BD20|) SWdeq 13 POO4 ‘1SaAJeH — ||ed
(s@oualtadxa 13 SUOISINIXS 9|qeN00q
paping ‘sa3po| Alyunodyoeq ‘3ulyjed) s9ouUaIadXg PapINgD - JAWWNS

:¢¢/T20T Ul SNJ0} 10} P3IJIIUSPI SI0103S

shem anbjun ui uoidai ay3 y3noJys SI0USIA 3AOIN (g
S92UBslJ8dXd J0ISIA 3AISUBYaLdwod pling (V

10}
SEap| [9ABJ) PUE S3IJBJIBUIN ‘UOIIBPOWIWIOIIE Y1IM SI01I3S Jaulied

"suoseas ||e y3noJayl uonowoud 1oy} S10309s Ay Ajjuap

JusuIdoeAS(] 101093 (|




uonowoJd |euoi8aJ ul pie 01 Jg
UOI1eUIISBQ ‘WSIINO] Sa1300Y ABUa100Y Yim Sulieys asew|

sodewl| 214129ds aJinboe 01 W3]
e JoA0 Supjdom siaydes303pIA g suaydesdoloyd Juapisay

saldelql] »o03s Jaydessoloyd
wouJj seseyaund oapIA pue agew| pageyded pue 3|3ulg

s}asse 2J4199ds aJinboe 031 S100Ys 03pIA pue ojoyd pauue|d

‘'sugiedwed g uonjowoud
‘SuisilaApe |euoldal Jyoddns 01 Aleuaql| 0apIA
pue a8ew| UOSE3S-1N0J JO JUSWAOIBASP PaNUIIUO)

OBPIA g 8fewl| — JulUOD (¢




(uSredwied |aAeIY JBIUIM) J3QUIM ISN[ uby] aj0wW pul{ (7
(uSiedwed |aAeIY ||B)) UDIOIS MOJIY U ISaNIDH (T
sugledwed uluund Ajzuanind

sugiedwed 214199ds UOSEaS JO/puUe 10123S dAISUBYIdWOD)
3uleyJew Jasuan|jul — uoljowold pue 1ua3u0d paisoy Aned paiyl .
BIPDIN [9ARIL

Spe pa3isooq pue suoijowodd pied elpsw [BI20S .

SpY 93009

(e1p3IAl 304
‘1eCO|D ‘||2g) J9piA0Id YJoMlau Y3nody) spe 32IA3p 3jiqow pue [eudiq

Spe julid

:90uU3lJadxa uedo|S
MOJIY 33 JO Sulpuelsiapun JO1ISIA PlINg 01 PasSN aJe $31310e1 SNOLIBA

subeduwe)) Bunsyeln
'UONOWIOIH  ‘BuisSiuenpy (£




e

Kouzmol sy} Lo dijm Saris S 3 sBinin ey oopee mi) ey

=N ng
anaaien

L

s
A
U by A 4

"92e|d 3ulyel Mou S1ISIA elpaw [aAed} JO AlSA0DaY
"12/020¢ Ul saiunyioddo paidnusip [aAeJ] uo pade|d suonieiiwi| pale@J-ajA0Dd

ey g1 up; &
P T ek

(20T ABIN) 9417 JO S3[B| |9ARIL —IY3NE|S dABQ PUB BNS »
(TZ0Z AON) Dg uoneunsaq — uAop Ajpysy
:dulwoadn

torq g Ry kg S 10"y
SR aTUAy «
L U]
W1 o wrguny

(TZ0T 429030Q) duizede|N D9 — HJIM|SS duelq «
(Tz0z 1das) aunyin) uleluno| Aeua100y — [|eSAWSH SJUIA

sHo3nIS AV

SUOIIRUTISAP UTRIUNOUT 353q S;J'g JO SWOS JISTA 01 UTeFe peot 3y Uiy

SHIMOOH AVYNHILOOM (TZ0Z 42qui23das) $09 SSIN — 1HM||0g BII303Y
mﬁw QNZDRN\W\HNEWNHN (Tzoz Ainr) auize3eln 240|dx3 — Agjpuld MaJpUY

A LT L ¥ T -

SAZULL IHEIUNOLIT |]231NG PUE YSELOA *YJ14[DG Y)Y AQ pasuey A .—H NON >_ 3 ﬂv C 3 m t_ ®>3 OU C m> e W C Omm_m V_L_ m _\/_ b

5AJ||CA 3UY) LN PUNQIP PRJIOI DM ML MOIIY 1addn pue aje UeIn|S AJCNILIAD pue JaAly

1109 21 oo o pape pue A._”NON cu;m_\/_v mc_Nmmm_\/_ 9NUIAY — SUI||0D 9A3]S

vda)iseD payedap aap s1enaasuaz
1€ 5puU3|s) N0 Woiy A1oys e TmollyaIo(dxI Y syl Jo sdarsioo) ay ul Buimo||o) d1em

M 5 Y8t sem 2ans al | jAvp pooS e aq 01 8u108 531, :patidas oy yaiym 0] Atauim 'Aapid N U mu.m O —l—
‘AJDPEAW “3JL3 DI, “ULOF JU SDAD PANOO| pUL AJLIatly 1no e pasucid | Juitiow )y uj '

1504 pasosuods ainsoIsig

eIpeiN [eonel] (1

uoiday Aajje uedols
PUE S3)E] MOLIY Y} Ul Sje poon)

uEI0IS DYI UAYY IDANY ACUDINOY M) UAALY LI

(qny 32213 € 5EM 3| NOA pO] | ‘0as)




“Si-

%6V

%LE

+MIIAMIAC (N1OISTN 30 c{t

%o T
%9+
%uo'Te

60°0Sl$

[ 1
%wvi- T
%0'Te !
X AN

L£6'002%

X6'0s | %9Sp-
%89l
- *9ps

WP ozt

IMIIARIAC MIY 28 f

udgu- T
ndogzs |
wdpg,

%L'VL
%
wins1ro wenvaommosar e KTe]

|elus1od uoseas Jajuim
pue Japjnoys jo Suipueisiapun ssauisng Jamoduwi]

'SIaY30
dojaAap pue S10123S ‘S1a¥JeW 9402 p|ing 01 BI1ep 3SN

(Suluds Uaiuim ‘|jey) suoseas pasu ul sussned
UOI3E}ISIA JUa44Nnd JO Sulpuelsiapun uadasap 01 3Uiyo0

"uedo0|S MOJJIY WOod} SlaJewl aAlIP UO SI SNJ0J Juadiny

'720C ABIN — 70T 390 U0I1103]|0d
elep Joj S92IAISS WSIINO) AuoydwAs Yyiim 10e4iuo)

TYUVME TYNOIDIH DI
wrLe |
WL+ |
weee T

I "UOI1BISIA

L on Jo suJsanred padueyd 13 s1axJew paidnisip IAOD

30

LOHSJVNS

UONoBI0D Ble( '8 UoIeesey (G




Juawidojanap ul — eipaN |eqolo 40 |99 ydnoJyy udiedwed JS1UIpN

Abmaapun - ugieduwed J91UIM puUe ||B) SIBTMOIIYDIO|dXTH#

wa_u-_w>mLu\EOU.CNUO_w>>O._._m
iAAAES (9ARJ] 199)

Abmaapun - eipalA ||9g — udiedwed duisiLisApe ||e4

34N1NJ 3Y) pue mou JOJ - WOy U s O

Jno pue ‘sulejunow ‘Uajem ayl 123304d sn djay

0] peaye ue|d “00j Siy3 (93} C} 813y SWOI OYyMm

S5 T51A 30103 Puso3aid s 0 Uopromoo ADMiapun — 1uswdo|aAap Y00ogaping |20

12129ds B |33 9N “Op am Se 31 104 B1ed pue
uo1B34 INo Y3m aA0| i jley 0 NOA 37IAUI A

buiobuo /Abmiapun — suoiyedl|gnd snolJeA Ul SUiSIJSAPE Julid

ue|d poob e saAiasap
ainjuaApe A1aA3

bujobuo — uonowoud Asesaulyl /ssauisng du| e yoog, g Ae|d pue Aelg,

buiobuo - uojyowoud 403035 pue AJesaulll paysljgelsy

g B buiobuo - DX Aeusjooy R 1IQ Aeua100y y3noayi SuisilBAPY

9JElJ] OU aAeaT

{ I4

n_ ﬁ ______., _ msomcolcm_g&mu
s95uaIadx3/Woo uedo|SMoLle : 'y

jdosp o5 [y
*sAeU3300) 1594 5.0 40 1183y ay3 ui daap m:\omto = CO_H_W_DUUN PC@HCOU Om_nv_> vw OHOF‘_Q

'P3||2ARII-$ST|-MOUS S UBDO|G MOLIY JIAOISI(]

1s3utm 3sn buiobuo — ugiedwed ssaualeme UOIIBUISS(
ueyj asow puiq

buiobuo — 3uiyayJew dluedio g pied eipaw |e1d0S

pPUILWOodN ¥ 1USLND
— Q1naln 14




LIOO UBDO|SMOLB MAWA
IO UBDOISMOLIED)OJU
v L/ G9¢ 0G¢
JO108JI(] BAINOBX]
MOMPBYD) UBDSIN

oeIu0 )




Committee Report

Date of Report: September 27, 2021

Date & Type of Meeting: October 28, 2021, West Resource Recovery Committee Meeting

Author: Travis Barrington, Resource Recovery Technician

Subject: RDCK RECYCLING DEPOT — ONE-YEAR OPERATIONS OVERVIEW

File: 12-6500

Electoral Area/Municipality Castlegar, Slocan, Silverton, New Denver, Nakusp, Electoral Areas
H, I, Jand K

SECTION 1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to present an overview of the volumes collected and expenses incurred during the
first full year of recycling depot operations under the Recycle BC (RBC) program in the West Resource Recovery
Sub-region.

SECTION 2: BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS

Figures in this report will span the 12-month period from September 2020 to August 2021 to present an overview
of the first full year of recycling depot operations with RBC. Depots opened in a staggered timeline in the summer
of 2020 and all depots across the RDCK were open by the start of September.

The RBC program only collects recycling from residential sources. At several depots across the region separate
bins for collection of Industrial, Commercial and Institutional (ICl) cardboard are provided by the RDCK, the
material collected in these bins is processed outside of the RBC system. The Ootischenia, Crescent Valley, New
Denver and Nakusp depots collect ICl recycling in the West Sub-region. Table 1 below presents a summary of
operations at all depots for the first full year in partnership with RBC compared to the final year of recycling
operations with Waste Management (WM). Expenses for and volumes from IC! collection are included in Table 1
and other figures in this report to present a complete picture of the RDCK recycling program.

Table 1: Annual Recycling Operations Summary

RBC RECYCLING ANNUAL | RECYCLING (WM) 2019
Total Net Cost per Ly Cost per
Tonnage Tonnage Net Expenses
Expenses tonne tonne

(kg) (kg)
Central SR 1,077,104 $423,857.28 $393.52 1,722,539 $523,571.59 $303.95
West SR 651,609 $264,852.07 $406.46 814,000 $336,801.75 $413.76
East SR 571,379 $213,013.67 $372.81 705,785 $278,309.60 $394.33

RDCK Total 2,300,092 $901,723.02 $392.04 3,242,324 $1,138,682.94 $351.19

Net expenses include financial incentives from RBC and are approximately $235,000 lower after one full year
compared to the last complete calendar year recycling with WM. There is no incentive paid for collected ICl
material. Total tonnage collected under the WM program was significantly higher; over 900 tonnes annually. IC
materials were accepted co-mingled with residential at all WM depots and could have contributed to the higher

rdck.ca




volume of recycling collected through that program. Currently, the separate ICI bins only accept corrugated
cardboard and not plastic or metal containers. It is important to note though that WM depots were unsupervised
and the overall contamination rate was estimated at approximately 30%. Recycling collected at RBC depots is
thoroughly tracked to its receiving facility and there is much greater assurance that it is diverted from landfills.
According to RBC’s 2020 annual report 90% of material collected province-wide was recycled. The remaining 10%
was either burned as fuel (some flexible plastics) or disposed of in landfill {unacceptable materials and
contaminated loads).

West Sub-Region Depot Summaries

The total annual volume of recycling collected at each West depot from September 2020 to August 2021 and the
incentives provided by RBC to collect that material are presented in Table 2 below. Total expenses include hauling,
staffing, property rentals and site maintenance. Ootischenia, Crescent Valley, Slocan, New Denver, Nakusp and
Edgewood are all RBC core depots and do not incur hauling costs for RBC materials, only for ICI materials where
bins are present. A more detailed summary of materials collected can be found in Appendix A.

Table 2: West SR Recycling Depot Operations Summaries

% of % of

Total Volume  SubRegion Financial SubRegion

(kg) Volume Incentive Total Expenses  Net Expenses Expenses
Ootischenia 233,187 36% S 24,569.93 $ 62,32880 $ 37,758.87 14%
Crescent Valley 144,072 22% § 15,759.98 § 57,337.20 $§ 41,577.22 16%
Slocan 72,554 11% S 7,873.99 S 23,836.68 S 15,962.69 6%
New Denver 70,190 11% § 592491 $ 35,096.32 $ 29,171.41 11%
Nakusp 93,731 14% $ 8,172.26 $ 48,924.87 S 40,752.61 15%
Edgewood 10,950 2% S 1,37054 S 22,467.00 $ 21,096.46 8%
Winlaw 13,312 2% S 1,25364 $ 29,039.70 $ 27,786.06 10%
Silverton 7,228 1% S 660.26 S 33,164.57 $ 32,504.31 12%
Burton 6,385 1% S 602.91 S 18,84535 S 18,242.44 7%
Total 651,609 100% $ 66,188.42 S 331,040.49 S 264,852.07 100%

Depot Staffing and Supervision

Throughout the first year of operations several depots in the West Sub-Region experienced staff shortages.
Recruitment of Recycling and Waste Educators (RWEs) was ongoing to fill the required shifts. These staffing
challenges resulted in depot closures or required other Resource Recovery staff such as the Lead Hand to cover
RWE shifts to keep depots open. At the Slocan and Nakusp depots recycling was collected several times with no
RWE present and only the scheduled Landfill Attendant (LFA) on site to monitor both waste and recycling
collection. At both sites contamination greatly increased with no dedicated RWE supervision. It is unlikely that
these sites will be able to accept recycling with only the LFA present.

Satellite Depot Analysis

The West Sub-Region operates three satellite depots: Winlaw, Silverton and Burton. None of these sites were
considered for core depot status by RBC due to their low volumes and locations near other cores - RBC’s access

Page | 2




guidelines specify that depots should be established for communities that are 45 minutes or more drive-time away
from the next closest depot.

Of the three satellites Silverton has the greatest net operating expenses and is the shortest distance from the
nearest core depot. The volume of recycling collected there could be absorbed at the nearby New Denver core,
though an additional SeaCan for overflow recycling storage may be required to increase capacity. The existing
container at Silverton could be relocated to New Denver, and once the volumes and traffic stabilize, the hours of
operation for New Denver could be reconsidered. The Silverton satellite depot could be closed and capacity
increased as required at the New Denver core depot.

RDCK Core Depot Allocation Analysis

The RDCK and RBC agreed on 12 core depots and locations when launching recycling operations together. Six
depots are in the West Sub-Region while the Central and East have four and two respectively. Locations were
chosen based upon the sites with the highest expected volumes collected and to provide minimum service levels
for residents based on their distance (measured by drive-time) from the nearest core depot. The West Sub-Region
covers a very large geographic area with long drive times between communities and the core depot in Edgewood
was primarily awarded to meet this access requirement. Relocating a core depot would require agreement
between all Sub-Regions and approval from RBC. By depot traffic the obvious candidate for relocation is to move
the Edgewood core to Grohman Narrows to maximize financial gains to the RDCK. This would force Edgewood to
become a satellite however and require negotiation of a hauling agreement for that site, which could be difficult
for such a remote location. Also, RBC has previously stated that they will not provide more than one core in a
community. Instead Staff recommend lobbying RBC to include Grohman as a core as part of Nelson Lakeside
operations and not attempting to move any core locations.

As core depots are not distributed evenly across the subregions, each subregion has established a different
number of satellites to serve residents outside of core locations. Table 3 below provides a summary of satellite
depots across the RDCK.

Table 3: RDCK Satellite Depot Operations

Satellite
Satellite Satellite Depot Satellite Depot | Satellite Volume Hauling Per
Depots Volumes (kg) Hauling Per Capita (kg) Capita
West SR 3 26,924 $33,474.13 1.19 $1.48
Central SR 4 292,406 $111,875.10 12.51 $4.78
East SR 4 77,180 $48,475.00 5.75 $3.61

Hauling expenses are provided as they are the only cost unique to satellite depots, Sub-regions that host the
busiest satellite depots incur the highest operating expenses while also generating the most volume. If any core
depots are relocated the decision should be based on generating the most value for the RDCK as a whole.
Residents in the Central and East are currently paying the most to maintain their access to recycling services
through satellite depots while also receiving significantly more recycling at their satellites than the West. Should
RBC not agree to any changes in core depot locations the RDCK may examine some kind of cost sharing among
Sub-regions to equalize the costs of satellite depot operations. This information was presented at the East
Resource Recovery Committee meeting on September 27, 2021 and the Central Resource Recovery Committee

Page | 3




meeting on October 19, 2021. Directors at both meetings voted to bring a motion to the November Board meeting
to direct RDCK staff to analyze and prepare options for this cost sharing proposal.

SECTION 3: DETAILED ANALYSIS

3.1 Financial Considerations — Cost and Resource Allocations:

Included in Financial Plan: XYes [INo Financial Plan Amendment: [ Jves XINo
Debt Bylaw Required: |:| Yes @ No Public/Gov’t Approvals Required: |:| Yes & No
The West SR operates nine recycling depots, six cores and three satellites. Volume collected and operating
expenses at each are summarized in Table 4 below. High-volume core depots (Ootischenia, Crescent Valley and
Slocan) are the most efficient to operate as RBC covers the hauling costs and provides financial incentives for all
of the residential recycling received. Commercial recycling is and additional expense at Ootischenia and Crescent
Valley but the total costs are fairly low as these depots are closer to the hauler’s receiving facility in Trail. The New
Denver and Nakusp core sites have similar collection rates but higher operating costs. Haul rates for ICI bins are
higher at these two sites due to the long distance from Trail. No financial incentive is provided for ICl material
collected. Low volume satellite locations are valuable to the communities they serve but also very expensive to
operate compared to the volumes they collect. The cost per tonne to collect recycling at the Silverton depot is
especially high and the rate of collection there (kilograms of recycling per hour open) is also the lowest in the Sub-
Region.

Table 4: West SR Recycling Depot Financial Summaries

Expenses

[

Total . Of, Cost Per Funded by celvm

Net Expenses  SubRegion . Collected per
Volume (kg) Tonne Incentives

Expenses (%) hour (kg)
Ootischenia 233,187 S 37,758.87 14% S 161.93 39% 99.7
Crescent Valley 144,072 S 41,577.22 16% § 288.59 27% 79.2
Slocan 72,554 S 15,962.69 6% S 220.01 33% 77.5
New Denver 70,190 S 29,171.41 11% S 415.60 17% 75.0
Nakusp 93,731 S 40,752.61 15% S 434,78 17% 103.0
Edgewood 10,950 S 21,096.46 8% S 1,926.62 6% 39.1
Winlaw 13,312 $§ 27,786.06 10% S 2,087.25 4% 213
Silverton 7,228 S 32,504.31 12% S 4,497 .24 2% 11.6
Burton 6,385 $ 18,242.44 7% S 2,857.30 3% 30.7
Total 651,609 S 264,852.07 100% S 406.46 20% 75.1

Depot operating costs are summarized by category in Table 5 below. ICl hauling is largely a fixed cost tied directly
to depot collection as it is charged per bin haul while satellite hauling is charged per site visit for satellite depots.
The three satellites are typically serviced as part of a single route once a week and combine to generate a full truck
load. Staffing costs are fixed to site operating hours, a dedicated RWE is recommended at all sites to provide
adequate supervision except for Burton and Edgewood where recycling supervision is provided as part of the sites’
operations contract. Low traffic counts and compact site layouts also allow the LFA to monitor waste and recycling
effectively.




Table 5: West SR Recycling Depot Operation Expenses

Satellite / ICI Property Rental Staff Maintenance and
Hauling Snow Removal
Ootischenia S 11,055.59 § - 5 51,273.21 S s
Crescent Valley S 6,390.40 S 8,400.00 § 39,971.05 S 2,575.75
Slocan ) - S = | S 20,674.68 S 3,162.00
New Denver S 12,073.64 S - S 20,674.68 S 2,348.00
Nakusp S 25,081.21 S -/ S 22,371.06 S 1,472.60
Edgewood S - S =18 22,467.00 S -
Winlaw S 10,275.33 S 3,600.00 S 13,783.12 S 1,381.25
Silverton S 15,587.45 § 2,520.00 S 13,783.12 S 1,274.00
Burton S 7,611.35 § - S 11,234.00 S -
Total S 88,074.97 S 14,520.00 S 216,231.92 $ 12,213.60

Significant savings of up to $32,000 annually could be achieved by closing the Silverton satellite depot. Satellite
hauling, property rental and maintenance costs totaling over $19,000 annually would be eliminated at a minimum
even if hours at New Denver are expanded. Hauling costs to the RDCK would not increase in this scenario as New
Denver is a core and only incurs charges for ICl recycling which is not presently accepted at Silverton.

Detailed summaries of depot operating costs in the East and Central Sub-regions can be found in Appendix A.

3.2 Legislative Considerations (Applicable Policies and/or Bylaws):

N /A

3.3 Environmental Considerations

Recycling through RBC allows residents to recycle a greater ranger of materials including plastic bags and
Styrofoam. Overall, tonnage collected has been lower than in the previous recycling program, but contamination
is also much lower and there is a greater assurance that what is collected at depots is actually recycled. A lack of
RDCK-provided recycling for ICI plastics, metal and glass has likely lead to more businesses disposing of recyclable
materials in the landfill. ICl materials are currently under consideration by the Ministry of the Environment for
inclusion in the Recycling Regulation.

3.4 Social Considerations:

The change to RBC recycling gave more responsibility to users to sort recycling and reduced hours of access. While
many residents appreciate the new supervision at depots and have noticed that sites are much cleaner service
interruptions at some depots during the busy summer months were experienced and caused frustration among
users.

3.5 Economic Considerations:

The lack of ICI recycling at most RDCK depots has created challenges for local businesses to manage their recycling
but may also lead to opportunities for smaller waste haulers to offer ICI recycling collection.

3.6 Communication Considerations:

Online engagement will continue to promote RBC recycling, as more users have become accustomed to the RBC
program, messaging can target specific materials and common questions from users. RBC will occasionally add
new materials to their program for recycling and produce promotional materials for use. Further promotion should
emphasize the material categories in an effort to reduce contamination when collection bins are not directly
supervised.




3.7 Staffing/Departmental Workplace Considerations:

The daily operations of the recycling program is a significant workload for the RR Operations Supervisor, RR
Technician, administrators and managers. It will remain an ongoing focus of the RR department to streamline
these processes as the program continues to mature. Reducing the opening hours of some depots may be possible
as more communities launch curbside recycling collection, reducing depot staffing needs.

Should operations cease at any depot staff accommodations may be required.

3.8 Board Strategic Plan/Priorities Considerations:

The RDCK has resolved in its current strategic plan to continue to innovate to reduce the impact of solid waste.
The RBC depot recycling program is helping the RDCK to complete the strategy to develop a sustainable, cost-
effective recycling program for our residents.

SECTION 4: OPTIONS & PROS / CONS

OPTION 1: The Board direct Staff to assess creation of single, district-wide recycling service that is
administered by the Joint Resource Recovery Committee rather than Sub-regional Committees.

PROS:
e Cost of recycling is shared equally by all RDCK residents

* More efficient administration of recycling operations and management of agreements with service providers
CONS:

e Complexity of consolidating all recycling services
OPTION 2: The Board direct Staff to cease operations at the Silverton satellite recycling depot.

PROS:
e Annual savings to RDCK estimated at $32,000

e Streamlined and more efficient recycling services in West SubRegion
CONS:

o Silverton residents would have to travel to New Denver or Slocan to access recycling

SECTION 5: Recommendations

None at this time.

Respectfully submitted,
- 7 /
Tany 1

Travis Barrington — Resource Recovery Technician

CONCURRENCE

Resource Recovery Manager — Amy Wilson
T
General Manager of Environmental Services — Uli Wolf .' *(;.,. Tl

ATTACHMENTS: Appendix A — Detailed Sub-Regional Recycle BC Depot Collection Tables

Page | 6



APPENDIX A: Detailed Sub-Regional Recycle BC Depot Collection Tables

West SubRegion - 2020-2021 Annual Recycling Depot Collection Volumes by Category (kg)

Ootischenia
Crescent Valley
Slocan

New Denver
Nakusp
Edgewood
Winlaw
Silverton
Burton

Total

Paper and
Cardboard
130,675
77,006
47,114
34,669
43,595
6,316
6,425
4,728
3,791
354,319

Mixed Containers

29,052
29,282
13,642
8,761
11,079
2,743
2,994
1,426
1,655
100,634

Glass Containers
37,823
20,496

9,084
7,186
12,465
1,173
3,893
1,074
938
94,132

Plastic Bags and
Overwrap
3,940
2,216
678
908
1,320
205

9,267

West SubRegion — 2020-2021 Annual Recycling Depot Operations Expenses and Incentives

Satellite / ICl

Property

Maintenance
and Snow

Other Flexible
Plastic

4,135
3,818
1,513

977
1,266

366

12,075

Styrofoam Icl
Packaging Cardboard All Recycling
3,622 23,940 233,187
1,164 10,090 144,072 .
523 - 72,554
529 17,160 70,190 '
1,037 22,970 93,731 .
147 = 10,950
13,312
- - 7,228
- - 6,385
7,022 74,160 651,609

Financial

Ootischenia
Crescent Valley
Slocan

New Denver
Nakusp
Edgewood
Winlaw
Silverton
Burton

Total

Hauling
$  11,055.59
$ 6,390.40
$ .
$  12,073.64
$  25,081.21
$ n
$  10,275.33
$  15,587.45
$ 7,611.35
$ B88,074.97

$
$
s
$
$
$
$
$

$
$

Rental
8,400.00

3,600.00
2,520.00

14,520.00

51,273.21
39,971.05
20,674.68
20,674.68
22,371.06
22,467.00
13,783.12
13,783.12
11,234.00
216,231.92

R Y R Y R T VR Vo SR VL SRV, A S

Removal

2,575.75
3,162.00
2,348.00
1,472.60
1,381.25
1,274.00

$  12,213.60

w v N nn

Core depots are highlighted in blue; hauling costs at cores represent ICI recycling only.
No financial incentives are provided for ICI recycling; expenses funded by financial incentives includes all depot operating expenses.
Burton and Edgewood staff costs are a portion of the contract value to operate those transfer stations.

Total Expenses

62,328.80
57,337.20
23,836.68
35,096.32
48,924.87
22,467.00
29,039.70
33,164.57
18,845.35
331,040.49

$
$
$
s
$
$
$
$
$
$

Incentive
24,569.93
15,759.98

7,873.99
5,924.91
8,172.26
1,370.54
1,253.64
660.26
602.91
66,188.42

Expenses
Funded by
Financial
Net Expenses Incentives
S 37,758.87 39%
5 41,577.22 27%
S 15,962.69 33%
5 2917141 17%
5 40,752.61 17%
S 21,096.46 6%
5 27,786.06 4%
5 32,504.31 2%
5 18,242.44 3%
5 264,852.07 20%



Central SubRegion — 2020-2021 Annual Recycling Depot Collection Volumes by Category (kg)

Paper and Plastic Bags and Other Flexible Styrofoam IC)

Cardboard Mixed Containers Glass Containers Ovarwrap Plastic Packaging Cardboard All Recycling
Nelson Lakeside 227,003 60,718 89,521 8,111 10,194 4,799 107,830 508,175
Balfour 66,777 17,727 9,871 1,708 2,388 1,323 - 99,795
Kaslo 35,932 12,957 18,064 1,120 2,066 770 20,240 91,149
Salmo 46,409 16,647 10,526 1,187 1,426 774 8,610 85,579
Grohman Narrows 164,381 23,612 44,092 - - - - 232,086
Kokanee 22,259 7,964 10,274 - + - = 40,497
Marblehead 6,341 2,109 2,233 . . - - 10,683
Ymir 5,157 2,270 1,713 % * - = 9,140
Total 574,259 144,004 186,294 12,127 16,074 7,666 136,680 1,077,104

Central SubRegion — 2020-2021 Annual Recycling Depot Operations Expenses and Incentives

Expenses
Maintenance Funded by

Satellite / ICI Property and Snow Financial Financial
Hauling Rental Staffing Removal Total Expenses Incentive Net Expenses Incentives

Nelson Lakeside S 7279244 S 51,832.00 $ 5458116 S 3,570.00 S 182,775.60 § 47,0207 $ 135,673.53 26%
Balfour S - S - $ 2853654 $ 772.98 $ 2930952 $ 1164194 $ 17,667.58 40%
Kaslo $ 2332838 S = S 2756624 S 200.00 S 51,094.62 LS 8,393.73 $ 42,700.88 16%
Salmo S 3,275.08 $ 6,540.00 $ 2258311 $ 1,468.57 S 33,8686.76 S 8,749.86 $ 25,116.91 26%
Grohman Narrows $ 4265575 S $ 5954308 $ 2,150.00 5 104,348.83 5 20,18842 S 84,160.41 19%
Kokanee $ 27,843.84 S 12,600.00 $ 27,29058 § 200.00 S 67,934.42 3 3,740.72 S 64,193.69 6%
Marblehead $ 23,099.98 S - S 4,686.26 S 1,461.75 S 29,247.99 5 982.42 $ 28,265.57 3%
Ymir $ 16,588.03 S S 937252 $ 980.00 5 26,940.55 5 861.84 $ 26,078.71 3%
Total $ 209,583.49 $ 70,972.00 $ 234,159.49 S 10,803.30 $ 525,518.28 $ 101,661.00 $ 423,857.28 19%

Core depots are highlighted in blue; hauling costs at cores represent ICl recycling only.
No financial incentives are provided for ICI recycling; expenses funded by financial incentives includes all depot operating expenses.



East SubRegion — 2020-2021 Annual Recycling Depot Collection Volumes by Category {kg)

Paper and Mixed Glass Plastic Bags Other Flexible

Styrofoam

Cardboard Containers Containers and Overwrap Plastic

Creston Car Wash 244,875 77,465 46,906 7,780 13,570
Crawford Bay 30,289 11,483 9,084 1,339 1,857
Creston Landfill 38,705 8,458 6,528 . -
Boswell 5,489 2,301 1,934 = ]
Riondel 6,664 2,495 2,477 - =
Yahk 1,169 717 242 - -
Total 327,191 102,920 67,171 9,119 15,427

East SubRegion — 2020-2021 Annual Recycling Depot Operations Expenses and Incentives

Maintenance
and Snow

Satellite / ICI

Property

Packaging

3,615
548

Financial

iCl Cardboard
45,388

45,388

All Recycling

439,599
54,600
54,692

9,724

11,636

2,128
571,379

Expenses
Funded by
ZLELLE]

Renta!

Hauling

Removal Total Expenses

Creston Car Wash $ 23,760.00 $ 37,800.00 $ 82,698.72 $ 3,121.00 S 147,379.72
Crawford Bay S - S £ $ 1766625 $ 2,158.25 $ 19,824.50
Creston Landfill $ 35075.00 S - $ 3997105 S - S 75,046.05
Boswell $ 6,000.00 S - S 9,37252 § 1,120.50 S 16,493.02
Riondel $ 5,825.00 §$ - s 452400 § 550.00 $ 10,899.00
Yahk S 1,575.00 S = S 3,000.00 $ - 8 4,575.00
Total $ 72,235.00 $ 37,800.00 $ 157,23254 $ 6,949.75 $ 274,217.29

Core depots are highlighted in blue; hauling costs at cores represent ICI recycling only.

Vi n

Incentive

47,449.02
6,769.85
4,783.52
912.37
1,080.42
208.50
61,203.67

Net Expenses
$ 100,585.39
$  14,573.46
$  69,840.49
$  15,311.26
$  9,729.55
$  4,347.91
$ 213,013.62

No financial incentives are provided for ICI recycling; expenses funded by financial incentives includes all depot operating expenses.

Incentives
32%
34%
6%
6%
10%
5%
22%



11

Hillary Elliott

From: FrontCounterBC@gov.bc.ca

Sent: October 21, 2021 10:58 AM

To: Hillary Elliott

Subject: Province of BC Referral Request on the Zincton Formal Proposal and Interim Agreement
Application

Attachments: Zincton_Formal_Proposal_Executive_Summary.pdf; Zincton.kml;

Enivronmental_Overview.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Village Of Silverton - Hillary Elliott

All Seasons Resorts/Alpine Skiing
Referral Number: 137530775 - 007
Reference Number: 4406015
Request Sent: October 21, 2021
Response Due: November 22, 2021

You are invited to comment on the following Crown land application. A response is optional. If no response is received
by the deadline, the application and adjudication process will move ahead.

The Province of British Columbia, represented by Mountain Resort Branch (MRB), has received a draft Formal Proposal
and an application for an Interim Agreement under the All-Seasons Resort Policy (ASRP) for a year-round lift-accessed
back country ski resort with pedestrian oriented mountain village east of New Denver, BC from Zincton Farms Ltd
(Zincton). At this time the Province is initiating review of the draft Formal Proposal and Interim Agreement application.

Formal Proposal

The Formal Proposal is a conceptual development plan that provides more project detail including proposed mitigations
for high level issues identified during the Expression of Interest (EOI) stage and details on development concepts,
servicing options, market and financial capability.

Interim Agreement

The Interim Agreement is a contractual agreement between the Province and Zincton in the form of a 5-year Licence of
Occupation. The acceptance and issuance of an Interim Agreement and associated Licence of Occupation is contingent
on the approval of the Formal Proposal. If approved, the Interim Agreement will allow Zincton to access the land for the
purpose of conducting studies and assessments.

Information Sharing Session

The online information session has been scheduled for October 21, 2021 from 5pm-7pm (PST). If you are unable to
attend the virtual session at the scheduled time, the information session will be recorded and made available for
viewing. The links for the session and the recording will be posted at:
https://wwwz2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/industry/natural-resource-use/resort-development/proposed-approved-resort-
master-plans/list-of-proposed-plans/zincton-all-seasons-resort-proposal

Not all the documents could be uploaded to E-referrals due to file size - the full Formal Proposal and Environmental

1



Overview maps can be found at : https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/industry/natural-resource-use/resort-
development/proposed-approved-resort-master-plans/list-of-proposed-plans/zincton-all-seasons-resort-proposal

Please Click Here to respond to this referral. Forwarding or otherwise distributing this email will provide access to the
associated information.

Note that it can take an extended period of time to connect to the E-Referrals website, this is normal. Avoid re-clicking
the "Next" button or you could extend this connection time.

***please DO NOT reply to this email ***

For "how-to" instructions on how to respond to this request, visit https://portal.nrs.gov.bc.ca/web/client/-/e-referrals
for instructional videos.

For technical assistance with E-Referrals, contact FrontCounter BC at 1-877-855-3222.

For more information regarding this referral, use the email link at the bottom of this message or use the "Email
Coordinator" link located within the referral to contact the Referral Coordinator.

Barb Wheatley

FrontCounter BC



Executive Summary

Zincton Formal Proposal
September 2021




Territorial Acknowledgment

The Proponent, Zincton Farms Ltd., and the Zincton Project acknowledge that the Zincton study
area is on traditional and unceded First Nations land. The Proponent commits to ongoing
conversations and Consultation with all interested First Nations throughout the planning
process and beyond to strive to align the Zincton project with the First Nation’s goals and
objectives where possible and achieve a shared and sustained prosperity for all parties.



1. INTRODUCTION

On behalf of the Zincton Farms Ltd. (ZFL), Brent Harley and Associates Inc. (BHA) is pleased to
present the Executive Summary for the Zincton Formal Proposal. As envisioned, Zincton will be
a new backcountry-oriented recreation destination for local residents and visitors.

Located along London Ridge and Whitewater Ridge near New Denver and Kaslo, B.C., the
proposed project would create a unique and inclusive lift-assisted backcountry ski experience.
As an integral part of the project, Zincton offers to assist in funding the remediation the 125-year-
old Retallack Mining District and establish a Summer Wildiife Corridor Protection Zone.

The Formal Proposal represents the second of three stages in the Province’s all-season resort
review process as detailed in the All Season Resort Policy and All Season Resort Guidelines. If
approved, the Zincton review process would culminate in a Master Plan and an Operating
Agreement with the Province of British Columbia. The Formal Proposal presents a refinement of
the concept presented in the 2020 Zincton Expression of Interest, responding to feedback from
First Nations, stakeholders, government, and the public, and offering additional details on all
aspects of the proposed project.

As we move forward, the Zincton concept will continue to be revised and refined with input from
First Nations, stakeholders, the public and the Mountain Resorts Branch of the Ministry of Forests,
Lands, Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development.

Backcountry s
those envisioned for Zincton.

#ABHA Brent Harley and Associates | E-1



1.1 PROJECT OVERVIEW

Zincton represents the evolution of all-season recreation in BC and Canada. As envisioned,
Zincton will offer a combination of lift serviced and backcountry skiing. There will be little impact
within the proposed tenure area, with base area, community services, and amenities located on
adjacent private lands. Through this approach, Zincton aims to help preserve and protect an
important seasonal wildlife corridor for north-south wildlife movement and migration, and enable
the remediation of the historic Retallack Mining District that was heavily exploited and mined in
the late 1800’s and early 1900’s. All the Zincton tenure lands will remain public lands administered
by the Province of B.C. There will be no transfer of public lands to any Zincton entity.

If realized, Zincton will establish all-season, backcountry-oriented mountain recreation
opportunities catering to dedicated local, regional, and international visitors seeking an immersive,
authentic mountain experience. With unique and intimate accommodation and amenities, the
proposed project will seamlessly blend the lift-serviced recreation experience of traditional
mountain resorts with extensive and accessible backcountry terrain. Locals and visitors alike are
increasingly seeking out wilderness experiences that are more managed without removing the
sense of adventure and accomplishment.

Zincton will offer a complete range of winter ski experiences across its Six Zones:

The Lift-Serviced Zone: In the Lift-Serviced Zone, residents and visitors will be able to
utilize chairlifts to access the western portions of the proposed tenure. These public lands
are adjacent to and above the privately held lands that will contain Zincton Mountain
Village. As proposed, this Lift-Served Zone would comprise approximately 20% of the total
tenure but is expected to cater to approximately 75% of local and guest skiers.

The Five Backcountry Zones: The remaining 80% of the proposed tenure falls into
Zincton’s five Backcountry Zones — Northwest, Lodge, Watson, Whitewater, and
Headwaters. Each Zone will offer a diverse range of human-powered winter backcountry
ski experiences, from glades to open bowls to steep couloirs, all subjected to an applied
comprehensive Operations and Avalanche Management Plan.

In the summer, this broad range of winter experiences will be complemented by hiking,
sightseeing and mountain biking opportunities. Zincton will encourage guests to use the existing
network of low elevation rail trails and hiking trails. In collaboration with existing operators and the
Goat Pass community, pre-existing mountain bike trails leading to the alpine would be
decommissioned. By working with local groups, Zincton will establish a Summer 10,000-acre
Wildlife Corridor Protection Zone within the proposed tenure.

Base area amenities and guest services will be provided by Zincton Mountain Village (ZMV), an
intimate, pedestrian-oriented, and environmentally sustainable community, wholly contained on
private lands outside the west end of the proposed tenure. Zincton Mountain Village will first and
foremost be a community, with residents working collectively towards the goal of sustainability
and circularity. The services and experiences offered by ZMV will be complemented by an
affordable and inclusive remote wilderness Backcountry Lodge located high on London Ridge.

E-2 | Zincton Formal Proposal



The location of the proposed Zincton tenure is situated on public lands just north of and parallel
to Highway 31A, extending between the historic towns of Three Forks and Retallack. The site sits
approximately 8 km east of New Denver and 38 km west of Kalso, and straddles Electoral Area
H and Electoral Area D of the Regional District of Central Kootenay. The proposed tenure area
covers approximately 5,500 ha, with land that rises almost 1,900 m from the Kaslo River (800 m)
to the summit of Whitewater Mountain (2,768 m).

Based on the refined concept for Zincton, the Comfortable Carrying Capacity (CCC) at buildout
would be approximately 1,227 skiers per day. Of this, it is anticipated that 75% of this capacity
will be supplied by the Lift-serviced Zone and the remaining 25% will be in the Backcountry Zone.
With the additional recreation activities offered, Zincton is expected to have a Balanced Resort
Capacity (BRC) of approximately 1,277 guests per day. Of note, CCC and BRC are theoretical
maximums used for design and planning purposes, but rarely achieved. Based on use patterns
at other ski areas, the number of skiers per day would average 60% — 70% of CCC, or 736 — 859
skiers per day. This carrying capacity would include local residents, Zincton Mountain Village
residents, and Village guests.

The calculation of CCC adapted the approach detailed in the All Season Resort Guidelines to
better represent the realities and expectations of backcountry skiers and the vision of an authentic
backcountry skiing experience. Of note, the CCC and BRC calculations include the ski terrain and
complementary activities (i.e. snowshoeing) that will occupy the private lands just above Three
Forks.

The vision for this project comes from Mr. David Harley, a long-time resident of New Denver, B.C.
David has worked and played in the Valhalla and Goat Range mountains and local communities
over the past four decades. He and Kelley have raised their children here and invested in the
community beginning in 1983.

BHA, working closely with David and the Zincton Team, prepared this Formal Proposal in
response to an invitation from the Province’s Mountain Resort Branch to proceed to the next level
of evaluation following the successful submission of the Zincton Expression of Interest. Aligned
with the direction laid out in the All Season Resort Guidelines (ASRG), the intent of this Formal
Proposal is to provide a description of the proposed all-season mountain destination, building on
the concept put forth in the Expression of Interest, and detailing how the concept evolved in
response to more detailed studies and the comments received from First Nations, stakeholders,
local government, and the public.

#\BHA Brent Harley and Associates | E-3



Zincton will offer skiers 5 unique Backcountry Zones, each with their own experiences to explore and enjoy.

E-4 | Zincton Formal Proposal



1.2 PROJECT RATIONALE

The initial economic activity in the region was mining, followed by timber extraction. Over the last
half century, the North Slocan, North Kootenay Lake, and the Goat Pass corridor have seen
economic and social decline as these industries closed or relocated. The population aged,
incomes steadily declined, and young families moved away due to a lack of jobs and opportunity.
Health and education services are being reduced or removed. The ability of the regional
communities to continue is in question without an influx of new economic opportunity and
population.

At the same time, backcountry skiing has experienced a surge in participation over the last 10
years. This last year, as a result of COVID restrictions, the sport expanded in an unprecedented
manner. With more new skiers heading into BC’s backcountry, there is demand for an organized
and managed hybrid offering. Improvements to backcountry ski technology and falling equipment
prices helped fuel this growth. Now, readily available backcountry data, information, and training
has created a better-informed backcountry marketplace. With increasing crowds and the
accompanying rise in ski lift ticket prices at traditional resorts, the appeal of lift-serviced skiing has
declined and the demand for a different experience has been growing. As a result, backcountry
skiing has transformed from the exclusive pursuit of hardcore mountaineers and extreme athletes
to the chosen pastime of weekend warriors. Zincton looks to cater to the rapidly growing
backcountry and ski touring markets. Zincton will offer the support, comforts, and amenities of an
all-season mountain community appealing to a different customer than current resorts.

It is worth noting that for local residents of New Denver and Kaslo desiring a conventional ski
experience, Whitewater, Red Mountain, and Revelstoke are all four-hour return trips in the dark
on marginal mountain roads in the winter. As a result, this trend toward backcountry skiing has
been embraced by the region’s population and Zincton will serve this dedicated and growing
segment of local residents.

If approved, Zincton will help address the many social and economic challenges facing the region.
It will preserve the natural landscape that draws residents and visitors to the area, while
accommodating the growing popularity of backcountry skiing, in turn generating much needed
jobs. These new jobs will spur growth throughout the New Denver/Goat Pass/Kaslo corridor
retaining and attracting young families with school-age children. This new population growth will
re-invigorate the surrounding communities. Zincton is not just about recreation, it is about
community enhancement and opportunities for locals.

#BHA Brent Harley and Associates | E-5



1.3 PROJECT MISSION, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Guided by the vision of a unique, backcountry-oriented mountain destination, the mission
statement for Zincton is:

Zincton will be an inclusive, ecologically sensitive, all-season, lift-assisted
backcountry-oriented destination that delivers authentic mountain experiences.

To achieve this experience for residents and guests, the following goals and objectives will be the
guiding principles in the creation and refinement of the Zincton:

e Todevelop unique, lift-accessed backcountry recreation experiences not found elsewhere
in North America.

e To create an alternative to the self-guided, backcountry experience.

* To develop a diverse suite of recreational opportunities that complements and enhances
the commercial opportunities of the surrounding area.

e To develop recreation experiences that will complement the goals and objectives of First
Nations, the local communities, and the Regional District of the Central Kootenay.

s To preserve, enhance, and showcase the natural beauty of the Goat Range, Goat Pass,
and Selkirk Mountains.

e To establish a destination that government, industry, First Nations, and the public will
recognize as a leading example of an environmentally, socially, and culturally responsible
community that is economically sustainable and resilient.

e To provide year-round attractions including backcountry touring, lift-serviced skiing, cross-
country skiing, snowshoeing, sightseeing, mountain biking, hiking, and cultural/ecological
interpretive programs.

e To be aresilient all-season destination offering a range of world-class outdoor experiences
regardless of seasonal weather conditions. \

e To create the needed amenities and facilities on the adjacent private lands, leaving the
proposed tenure essentially intact with the exception of the needed remediation of the
Retallack Mining District.

e To contribute to BC's growing reputation as a world-class, year-round tourism destination
by adding unique alternatives to the established ski operations in the Powder Highway
region of the BC Interior.

e To spur winter season visitation, in turn supporting local economic growth and
diversification, and supporting currently underutilized facilities during the winter season.

e To expand the economic and local employment opportunities for current residents while
also appealing to new residents.

e To use Zincton as a platform to directly bolster the local economy by encouraging
innovative businesses, and new jobs and opportunities for local residents.

e To develop a mountain destination that is economically viable, serving as an important
generator for the local and regional economies, and contributing substantial revenue to
the government tax base while restoring and regenerating public lands.

E-6 | Zincton Formal Proposal



1.4 ZINCTON — EVOLUTION OF THE CONCEPT

The Zincton concept has evolved since the submission of the Expression of Interest (EOI) in May
of 2020. In responding to the concerns, questions, comments, and suggestions from First Nations,
stakeholders, government, and the public in the EOI public referral period, as well as more
detailed analysis of the study area, the initial Zincton proposal underwent several significant
refinements and improvements. These upgrades, listed below, collectively advance Zincton
towards achieving the project goals and objectives while, at the same time, meeting and resolving
legitimate concerns brought up in the EOI process.

Wildlife Corridor Protection Zone

Zincton commits to creating a 10,000-acre Summer Wildlife Corridor Protection Zone within the
proposed tenure. The intent of the Protection Zone is to reduce and limit future commercial
recreation operations within the Zone, but it will continue to be open to historic public use. This
Protection Zone is planned to help restore and strengthen habitat and reduce human/wildlife
interactions, while also supporting continued enjoyment by local residents for years to come. It
will help maintain the current north-south movement and migration patterns critical to resident
wildlife, particularly where isolated near Kokanee Park. Please note, only 5% of the actual wildlife
corridor lies inside the Zincton tenure. The opportunity to protect other 95% of the wildlife corridor
lying outside of the proposed Zincton tenure will require neighbouring operators and users to
engage and work collaboratively. Zincton would be eager to participate in these efforts.

Grizzly bear pausing during a fishing expedition to survey the area.
Photo: Jill Marnee

#NBHA Brent Harley and Associates | E-7



Summer Season Operations

Zincton’s summer season will be limited to alpine hiking and guided sightseeing (including along
London Ridge to the Backcountry Lodge), interpretive programming, and low-elevation bike trails
and lift-assisted mountain biking in the Village on private lands outside of the proposed tenure.
Public and commercial huckleberry harvesting will be discouraged to protect this important food
source for pregnant Grizzly bear, and to reduce grizzly/human interactions. Bike access to the
alpine along London Ridge will be discouraged and Zincton will work with existing operators and
the Goat Past community to reduce the use of and ultimately decommission the existing mountain
bike trails to protect the short, six-week growing season of these meadows.

Remediation of the Retallack Mining District

Historic mining activities left toxic materials that create downstream issues for humans and
wildlife. Guided by the newly formed Zincton Institute and funded initially from Zincton’s 1% for
the Planet environmental action fund, Zincton will help remediate the contaminate land and water.
1% for the Planet encourages collaboration and partnerships, the fund will grow by adding
partners as the success of the remediation effort become established and published.

Zincton Institute

Zincton Institute is a newly formed Not-For-Profit organization with a Board of Directors that is
independent from Zincton. The Board will be drawn from both local community and concerned
members at large. The Institute will have three tasks: To take the comprehensive environmental
inventory and analyses produced through the resort review process and continue its good work
to create a researchable database of information concerning the environmental issues in Goat
Pass. Next, to evaluate and guide the remediation of the Retallack Mining District with funding
from 1% for the Planet. Finally, the Institute will foster a mountain culture community by
encouraging writers, artists, musicians, and other creative people to join in the Zincton effort.
Pursuing these three tasks will assist Zincton to achieve its environmental and cultural objectives,
while contributing to the surrounding communities.

Backcountry Lodge

The Backcountry Lodge has been relocated out of the primary wildlife corridor to near the midpoint
of London Ridge. The Lodge is now envisioned as an easily accessible, affordable, and inclusive
remote backcountry accommodation experience.

Public Recreation Access

The public will continue to have no-cost access and use of the proposed Backcountry Zones
within the tenure staging from Fish Lake. Public use will be managed through a Backcountry
Access Management Plan jointly developed with local user groups.

EV (Electric) Buses Between Kaslo, Zincton, and New Denver

Zincton proposes to run EV buses between Kaslo, Zincton, and New Denver allowing residents
and guests to travel through the corridor without need for personal vehicles. This will encourage
exploration of the local communities, reduce vehicular traffic and wildlife interactions on Highway
31A, and reduce the associated greenhouse gas emissions.

E-8 | Zincton Formal Proposal



2. RESORT CONTEXT

2.1 LOCATION AND STUDY AREA

The proposed location for Zincton is within the Goat Range of British Columbia’s Selkirk Mountain
Range, approximately 8 kms east of New Denver, and 38kms west of Kaslo BC along Highway
31A, in the Regional District of the Central Kootenay (Fig. E-1).

Vaneoaver

Figure E-1. .Location and Regional Context for Zincton

The proposed study area extends along London and Whitewater Ridges anchored at one end by
Whitewater Mountain (2,768 m), with the Seaton Creek forming the southern boundary, Kane
Creek acting as the northern boundary, and Whitewater Canyon serving as the eastern boundary
(Fig. E-2). The site sits above the old ghost towns of Three Forks, Zincton, and Retallack.

2.2 ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND NET BENEFITS

Cascade Environmental Resource Group Ltd. (Cascade) completed a comprehensive
Environmental Overview (EQ) of the proposed tenure, examining cultural, physical, aquatic, and
terrestrial environments based on existing data and studies and following the requirements and
direction of the All Season Resort Policy and All Season Resort Guidelines.

The Cascade EO confirmed and elaborated on the findings of the EOI and concluded that existing
and proven mitigation measures are likely to effectively address any potential adverse effects
resulting from the Zincton project. Further, Cascade offered a comprehensive list of
recommendations and best practices. Zincton adopted these recommendations, which will
continue to be updated and refined should the project proceed. The full EO is available in the
Appendix of Formal Proposal.

#YBHA Brent Harley and Associates | E-9



(ML Brunnan &

. e 5 : =% i - Zincton =y
o . 1 s _‘___-:__ ‘ J Lr . _F

Sy 3 Frivate Base

=Th 3 DA Audy Gy, 7 i L AP N bR Faklo, S

= Nitw Danvar

Figure E-2. Proposed Zincton Boundary

In addition, ZFL submitted the refined concept for Zincton to the Environmental Assessment Office
(EAQ) for their opinion on whether the concept would require an Environmental Assessment (EA).
The EAO found that the Zincton concept did not meet any of the thresholds to trigger an EA as
detailed in the Reviewable Projects Regulation. The opinion from EAO is available in the Appendix
of the Formal Proposal.

Guided by the ongoing environmental studies of the Zincton Institute, the project will remain
environmentally sound. With the minimal impact on the proposed tenure and the substantial effort
to help remediate the 125-year-old toxic waste of the Retallack Mining District there will be net
positive restorative effects on the immediate area.

Based on the conclusions of the Cascade EO, combined with the commitment to embrace and
surpass the EO recommendations, Zincton will establish a managed approach to all recreation
activities within the tenure. Zincton will work closely with commercial operators and local user
groups to create the 10,000-acre Summer Wildlife Corridor Protection Zone, and to help
remediate the historic Retallack Mining District. The vision for Zincton is to be an exceptional
environmental steward of the land, creating restorative, regenerative benefits for wildlife, wildlife
habitat, and the Goat Pass environment in general.

E-10 | Zincton Formal Proposal



Over 1,700m of vertical from the top of Whitewater Peak to Highway 31A below.

#A\BHA Brent Harley and Associates | E-11



2.3 COMMUNITY AND REGIONAL IMPACTS

At its core, Zincton is local community development. The motivation for Zincton is rooted in the
economic and social challenges currently facing the Goat Pass communities—New Denver and
Kaslo. Their 30-year social and economic slide must be halted.

Concerns exist that Zincton will both place too great a strain on the local community services and
remain isolated and insular such that socio-economic benefits will not be felt outside.

Currently, the Kaslo/New Denver region has a strong summer tourism business that runs close
to full occupancy. That occupancy does not carry over to the winter season, which remains very
slow. The new Winter visitors to the area will end the current reliance on the single-season, and
result in a viable, bankable, year-round eco-economy. Evening out the low spots in the economy
will create a stronger year-round job market, allow businesses to invest, and encourage young
families to consider the region a viable place to put down roots.

New residents moving to the area becomes an important benefit. New jobs will be created both
on-site, in the Village, and regionally in support of the development and new services. Regional
growth will renew and increase demand for provincially funded public services. Zincton will spur
housing and commercial construction, generate new businesses, and increase school enrollment
as families move to the area. Zincton is already actively engaged in the process of preserving
existing community services, specifically the hospital in New Denver, in collaboration with local
government and groups of concerned residents.

The socio-economic analysis suggests that Zincton will create at least 127 jobs in the region, with
many of these created in Kaslo to New Denver areas. Further, to encourage residents and guests
to explore and become a part of the larger Goat Pass community, Zincton will run EV buses
connecting New Denver, Zincton, and Kaslo. This new transport system will have the added
benefit of reducing reliance on personal vehicles throughout the corridor, limiting traffic, which in
turn will reduce the potential for wildlife interactions and the associated greenhouse gas
emissions.

E-12 | Zincton Formal Proposal



#\BHA Brent Harley and Associates | E-13



3. RESORT CONCEPT

3.1 MOUNTAIN CONCEPT

The Mountain Concept for Zincton details the placement of ski lifts, ski pods, and dedicated
backcountry terrain to fulfill the Zincton vision. This will become a mountain recreation area
delivering an unparalleled recreation experience. Local residents, Village residents, and visitors
will be able to access approximately 4,200 ha of backcountry terrain through a small network of
lifts and self-propelled travel (Fig. E-3 & Fig. E-4).

The Lift-Serviced Zone will be contained in the west end of the proposed tenure and will overlap
with the privately held property. This terrain will be serviced by five chairlifts and one gondola
providing access to approximately 690 ha of skiable terrain. The upper most lift will reach the top
of London Ridge. Once offloaded from this lift, backcountry skiers will tour to the Backcountry
Lodge along London Ridge and access the remainder of the terrain in the five Backcountry Zones.

Each of the Backcountry Zones will offer different terrain and backcountry ski experiences. The
Zones will be differentiated by exposure to solar and weather, and degrees of difficulty to suit a
range of skill levels. These Zones will extend over approximately 3,500 ha (82% of the proposed
tenure) only accessible through self-propelled travel.

Limited traditional ski trails will be developed (i.e., cleared) at Zincton. Gladed terrain will be
established where appropriate and ski outs will be constructed at the bottom of slopes to lead
skiers back to the Village and EV bus pickups. Zincton will name the bowls, glades, couloirs, and
prominent features of the ski terrain for orientation and wayfinding but will not employ the intense
terrain development found at traditional mountain resorts. The land will largely remain as it is
today but be managed through comprehensive Operations and Avalanche Management Plans.

Winter season activities will be complemented in the summer by hiking, interpretive programming,
guided sightseeing, music and arts, and mountain biking within the Village area and along the
numerous rail trails and legacy wagon roads. Summer operations will respect the proposed
Summer Wildlife Corridor Protection Zone, a 10,000-acre area designated to preserve important
wildlife habitat and the north-south habitat connectivity (Fig. E-5). Zincton will work with other
commercial operators to reduce and limit commercial activity in this Zone and will work with local
stakeholders and not-for-profit groups to jointly develop a Backcountry Access Management Plan
to achieve the goals of the Wildlife Corridor Protection Zone.

Examining the winter season activities, based on total skiable terrain, the capacity of the chaitlifts,
the ability for skiers to travel uphill, and the available area for skiing (taking the realities of
backcountry skiing into consideration), BHA determined that the Comfortable Carrying Capacity
(CCC) of Zincton at ‘buildout’ will be 1,227 skiers per day. Accounting for additional proposed
activities and passive guests, the Balanced Resort Capacity (BRC) of Zincton at ‘buildout’ will be
1,277 visitors per day. The BRC represents an ideal maximum number of guests that can use the
ski facilities while maintaining the desired guest experience and should not be confused with a
projection of common daily visitation. In practice, based on industry averages, average daily
visitation at Zincton will range from 60-70% of these capacity numbers. The skier days will come
from local residents, Village residents, and destination guests.

E-14 | Zincton Formal Proposal



€-3 anbig - & r

nm
20
2

% o

SauU0Z NS
pasodold

EL:]
pROY MY eydiv S00LE

vHE

4q Buinueld urunow

0SL S0A
08 JBAUBG MeN
616 %08
AareH paeq TN

NO3NIZ

i g

2uoZ padInog-HI abeliA
DUOZ PICIALIS-YI !
AUOZ 1SPMUNON D
Uo7 abply UomEAM u
suoZ abpo E
aAUOZ JIEMINIYA u
ainz JalempesH u

§8UOZ 1YS |PRUBIOY

shemuby ==

aproy

soxe1 |

SpuET RAJY ASeq e|RALd D

easy ainua| pasodolg _..U
SEBlY PAIIBIOI pUe SyIed

Bumsed oiland <

8bpnT Ayunooyaeg pesodold m

pueba

1202
|esodold |ewlo4

o EEEE TR, - M3




1BS0d0i4 (BLLIO4 UOJOWIZ | §|-]

juelq Ys| Ajjeuonuaiul sy sbed siy |



-3 eunbiy

MBIA € SBU0Z IS
pasodolid

woskayseuniq wam
2002 2€6 ¥08 oL
SHO3AA ‘Epee)

08 esum

PROH 9NV BUDlY SO0L-F

Aq Buugg umunow

210} po1adeig

ouoz peomsag-y obenn § %

auoz peainses-un
ounz semunon )

euoz ebpiy uosiepm E
euoz ebpa u

6U0Z 1O1EMBNILAY D
au07 Jej@mpeap g

86U0Z IS [B}JUB)Od
shemybly ===
apeoy

soyen ||

spueq Baly Ased dleAud D

wely einuay pssodosg [ 1

Ny pE0BI0IG Pt Ykt

Bupiied ofand m—

aBpo Anunooyseg pesodold ‘

Lzoz
|esodo.id |ewioy

NOJONIZ

Vi€ AMH

S (eH898)
w....ONuuﬂ__Sf_n.-.. N N

i B T AR b g
o (eHe69Y) TR <
A Y auoz abpor R N.,.fl.

(eH-zov)
auoz jorempEal

\ N Nig e ’
| esueeos y
N _f:_......ﬂ.\_v .. Vi .."/ L



jesodoiy (euio4 uopurz | gl-3

yuelq Ysa| Aleuonusiul si abed siyy



@ = K o
g S :
3 g £ W — L
i z £ .58 % '
= ¢ S, $1:i g 3
a 3 g E et c Ik
{_9 2§53 .223¢% S
o E B F LT 58 O
© S B g > & (SR -4 bl
g 5 g 2§ ERr Y o5
£ v 5 8256 Z sz o E
— LE giiq_o'f&n_gis Qe
i [y 3 i o)
] o i~ c
@ [ d =
_|<’\TI [ LIS on

Summer. @ﬁ]_‘g}

Wildlife Corridor/Protection'Zone!

710/000/Acres| 1

e

L
S
,_-_.__r" S

SUMMER

L




jesodoi4 [euo uojoulz | 0g-3

sjuelg Ya| Alruonusiul s| abed siy |



3.2 BASE AREA CONCEPT

3.2.1 Zincton Mountain Village

Zincton Mountain Village (ZMV) lies wholly within private lands located above the ghost town of
Three Forks. It is important to note that its approval and development are through a separate
process administered by the West Kootenay Region of the Ministry of Transportation and
Infrastructure (MOTI), in adherence with all local planning regulations. While ZMV is linked to the
proposed tenure, its development is not conditional on the approval of the tenure.

Zincton Mountain Village will contain the ski area base amenities to meet the needs of the Village
residents. The Village will be a small-scale community about 30 hectares, limited to this size by
the steepness of the surrounding terrain. The Village, at buildout, will be 20% of the footprint of
the Village of New Denver, 10% of the Village of Kaslo proper, and less than 0.8% of the Resort
Municipality of Whistler.

The Village will be a self-contained carbon neutral community, with residences occupying several
benches around the Village core. Power will come from Silversmith Power and Light in Sandon,
federally certified green (EcolLogo) since 1999. This power station is also the longest continually
operating power station in Western Canada and has significant cultural and historical importance.
Where needed, Zincton will supplement the power from Silversmith with onsite solar and wind
and be grid-tied to BC Hydro.

Finally, as proposed, Zincton will provide accommodation for staff on-site. The accommodation
provided will be mountain cabins consistent with the style of Zincton Mountain Village and with
easy access to all community services. Staff at Zincton, from frontline to management, will be an
important part of the community.

#\BHA Brent Harley and Associates | E-21



3.2.2 Backcountry Lodge

The Backcountry Lodge will be a ‘ski to/ski from’ remote wilderness lodge, providing accessible
and affordable accommodation to Zincton residents and guests. During the day, the Lodge will
offer skiers shelter out of the elements, a spot for a simple meal and a place to relax and socialize
between runs. The Lodge will provide overnight guests with bedding, and gear storage and repair.

The Lodge will become an iconic destination and basecamp for residents and guests with truly
unigue accommodation experiences at approximately 2,200 m. The views extend across the Goat
Range and down the valley towards Kokanee and the Valhallas. There is more than 1,300 m of
skiable vertical out the backdoor. The Lodge will allow residents and guests to have a diverse and
engaging stay at Zincton, a distinct and unique experience not offered by other facilities in the
region.

As planned, the Lodge will be located on London Ridge, approximately 6 km from Zincton
Mountain Village and above the closest chairlift terminal. The Lodge will be capable of hosting up
to 50 overnight guests at a time, including support staff and any accompanying Zincton Mountain
Guides.

Importantly, the development of the Backcountry Lodge will be secured through a License of
Occupation, as opposed to a Crown Grant, such that the Lodge would revert to the Province if
the Tenure were to expire and not be renewed. All public land remains public.

Endless areas to explore at Zincton, one step at a time.

E-22 | Zincton Formal Proposal



4. MARKET AND SOCIO-ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

4.1 MARKET ANALYSIS

There is a growing need for managed backcountry skiing experience that goes beyond the
traditional intensive lift-serviced ski area madel. Since 2015, backcountry ski equipment sales
have surpassed the sale of traditional ski equipment sales by a significant margin. In the last year,
backcountry ski sales increased by over 81%, splitboard sales increased by 146%, and the sale
of safety gear (e.g. transceiver, shovels, and probes) jumped by 150% year over year'. There is
no indication of the trend slowing. Zincton will meet this backcountry skiing need in
environmentally responsible manner.

A quantification of the regional and provincial marketplace illustrated the significant potential for
Zincton. Using conservative estimates derived from surveys in Canada and the US, the potential
market size for BC was estimated at 93,000 backcountry skiers who take an estimated 530,000
backcountry trips annually. When traditional resort skiers are factored in the potential market
grows to over 850,000 skiers taking 5.5 million ski trips annually. The strength of BC’s reputation
for great skiing outside the Province will also ensure a strong demand from destination and
overnight guests.

Zincton will strengthen British Columbia’s winter sports reputation by adding another,
complementary must-see ski destination in the West Kootenays, and catering to a rapidly
expanding marketplace of existing and aspiring backcountry skiers.

|
— |
Dedicated uphill routes will manage skier traffic and improve the experience.
Photo: Paul Wright

' Peruzzi, M. (2021). The Backcountry Ski Sales Boom Is Upon Us: Here's what you need to know if
you're in the market to buy this season. Outside. Retrieved from:
https://www.outsideonline.com/2420300/backcountry-ski-sales-boom-2021

#\BHA Brent Harley and Associates | E-23



4.2 SOCIO-ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

The Zincton concept has been developed to balance the region’s existing tourism industry and be
in line with the capacity of community services. As a tourist draw, Zincton will primarily be a winter-
season destination, attracting guests from the region, the province, and around the world to Goat
Pass during what has typically been slow time locally. The influx of winter season guests will lift
the current tourism ‘low season’ and alleviate tourism operators’ singular reliance on having a
good summer. Related, Zincton guests will make use of existing infrastructure that serves the
summer season tourism industry (e.g. grocery stores, pharmacies). As such, Zincton will not place
increased demand on these services, and will not require new or expanded community services.
As Zincton grows with increased resident participation and visitor interest, the facilities will
incrementally grow with the demand. At the same time, Zincton creates new, inclusive recreation
opportunities for local communities, lowering barriers to access to recreation for families, and
improving the area’s quality of life. Zincton is about community development and sustainability.

At this stage in the planning process, the total capital investment required to realize the concepts
in the proposed tenure area presented in the Formal Proposal is estimated at approximately $15
million (CAD). This investment will generate employment opportunities at Zincton and in the
surrounding communities. Construction activities undertaken to realize the proposed project are
projected to create to 115 jobs (Full Time Equivalent - FTE). These jobs are projected to generate
$6.5 Million (CAD)? in direct, indirect, and induced wages over the construction period in the non-
residential construction, transportation, engineering, and forestry sectors.

The economic benefits of the proposed concept will continue during operations. At buildout, based
on a projected visitation of 100,000 skier days annually (local residents, Village residents and
visitors), operations are projected to support 127 jobs directly and another 48 jobs through indirect
and induced impacts, resulting in wages estimated at $2.9 million (CAD), $1.2 million (CAD), and
$0.7 million, respectively.

2 Ali dollar values presented are in 2021 CAD.

E-24 | Zincton Formal Proposal



5. LOOKING FORWARD

Zincton will be an inclusive, ecologically sensitive, all-season, lift-assisted backcountry-oriented
destination that delivers authentic mountain experiences. Driven by the rapidly growing
backcountry skiing market and the physical potential of the proposed tenure area, it will deliver a
range of economic and social benefits to the communities of the Goat Pass while preserving
important wildlife habitat and movement corridors and historic public use. Zincton is about more
than recreation, it is about community development and sustainability.

If realized, the Zincton project will:

e Create a 10,000-acre Summer Wildlife Corridor Protection Zone that will help protect an
important wildlife corridor and wildlife habitat.

o Work with commercial operators and the public to reduce and limit commercial
recreation in sensitive alpine areas during the summer (May to November).

e Maintain no-cost public access to the proposed Backcountry Zones.

o Help remediate the historic Retallack Mining District guided by the Zincton Institute and
with funds created through the 1% for the Planet program.

e Offer inclusive and accessible recreation activities to the Goat Pass communities.

e Link the Goat Pass communities of New Denver, Zincton, and Kaslo through EV bus
routes.

e Grow and spur the economic and social rejuvenation of the Goat Pass communities.

e Be Carbon Neutral from opening day with federally certified ‘green’ power supplied by
Silversmith Power and Light.

As we move forward through the Formal Proposal review process, we are looking to connect with
the people of the Goat Pass region and to build a community of support around the Zincton
project. If you would like to share your support and advance the Zincton project, please let the
Mountain Resorts Branch know by submitting a formal response through the Applications,
Comments, and Reasons for Decision website (link). If you're interested in learning about other
ways to help support the Zincton project, please email inquiries@zincton.com, follow us
on Instagram (@zincton_mountain_village), or visit www.zincton.com.

#\BHA Brent Harley and Associates | E-25



g7 8
kl\

DISTINCTIVE MOUNTAIN RESORT DESIGN

Brent Harley and Associates Inc. (BHA)
4 — 1005 Alpha Lake Road
Whistler, BC, V8E 0H5
www.brentharley.com
bha@brentharley.com
604.932.7002



Silvery Slocan
Historical Society
Incorporated
April 28, 1971 to

preserve the history of
the Slocan Lake area and

operate the Silvery
Slocan Museum

Street address
202 6th Ave.
New Denver

Mailing address
Box 301
New Denver, BC
VOG 1S0

Email
silveryslocanhs@
gmail.com

Facebook
facebook.com/
SilverySlocan

Board
President
Henning von Krogh

Vice-president
Margaret Scaia

Secretary
Judith von Krogh

Directors-at-large
Joyce Gill
Greg Nesteroff
Chad Townsend

®,
D

IN THIS ISSUE:

Museum receives tool
donation: Page 2

Remembering Kyuichi
Nomoto: Page 3

The House of Joyful
Tidings: Page 4

1

MUSEUM

he Silvery Slocan Museum reopened

on July 31, marking our 50th anniver-

sary and coinciding with the launch of
Henning von Krogh's new book, Early
Stories from Slocan Lake (available through
the museum: silveryslocanhs@gmail.com).

It was the first chance for the public to see
our revamped exhibits since the pandemic
began. Updating the museum has taken place
over the past two years and is the product of
hundreds of hours of volunteer labour.

It was also the first opportunity in several
years to view the second floor, which has
been closed for structural repairs. (See pho-
tos on page 5.) The museum’s upstairs was
once home to the Bank of Montreal’s man-
ager and his family. Thus, you will see a very
domestic scene including bedrooms, kitchen,
living room and dining room.

Due to donations from former physician
Dr. Brouse and the community, you can tour
the medical room, housing many artifacts
used at the old New Denver hospital in the
early and middle decades of the 20th century.

; ilvery Slocan
4§ (storieal fouciety

Another difference is that in addition to
being able to walk into the kitchen and living
room, you can now walk into the bedroom
and medical room to better examine the arti-
facts, giving you a more intimate feeling and
proximity to these items.

As you tour the rest of the building you'll
notice dozens of newly-framed photos of com-
munities surrounding New Denver including
Rosebery, Hills, Silverton, and Sandon.

Also housed in the museum are refreshed
exhibits of the early occupation by First Na-
tions of the land surrounding Slocan Lake,
early mining history, domestic and outdoor
activities, commemoration of community con-
tributions to 20th century global conflicts, the
Japanese-Canadian internment, as well as or-
ganizations including the Canadian Legion,
and the recognition of various cultural, social
and celebratory events that many who have
lived and visited here will recognize.

The museum is now closed for the season,

CONTINUED ON PAGE 2




Museum receives tool donation

be Wiens (1932-2020), pictured at
. right, was born in Cereal, Alta.,
passed away in New Denver where he
had resided since 1972. Abe and his wife
Catherine, with their four children, moved
to New Denver from Vancouver.

They quickly became active community
members. While Catherine was out in the
public, Abe was always behind the scenes:
whenever Catherine needed something
fixed, built or repaired he was the go-to guy
for whatever project she was working on.

Abe was known for the wide variety of
roses in his garden and well-maintained
front yard. He was always willing to lend a
hand and share his knowledge with whoever
needed it. Abe will always be fondly remem-
bered by family and friends as the jack-of-all-

trades and master of none.

The museum has always been short of
some tools to make adjustments and repairs
and, when tools were required, it involved
borrowing tools and bringing them to the

museuin.

With the sale of the Wiens house, the
family executor kindly donated a few arti-
facts and a number of tools to the museum.
The Silvery Slocan Museum thanks the
Wiens family for this kind donation. O

P s ® BB DD PSS DR DD DS DDB DD DDIENDDBDDD DB R AP WD IFDDBRFRDD DN D DS PR

Museum : Lost Kootenay

reborn

CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

however, the board is con-
sulting with archivist Linda
Wills to develop a strategic
plan for the next five years
of museum work. This work
will include the restoration
of the garden area outside
the main museum entrance.

The restoration project
will see the placement of ar-
tifacts related to mining his-
tory, new signs related to
the history of the area, and
the introduction of environ-
mentally sustainable plants
in the garden area.

‘We hope to see you when
we open next summer! O

&8 B e s ew

o 0 OO F T EE PN

PR Q0B 0 Ee NSRS

(" ilvery Slocan Historical Society direc-

“i, tor Greg Nesteroff has co-authored a
%/ new photo history book with Erie
Brighton called Lost Kootenays, based on
the popular Facebook site of the same
name.

This hardcover volume contains about
130 photos of the East and West Kootenays,
taken between the 1860s and 1950s, includ-
ing images of New Denver, Silverton, San-
don, and Rosebery. The cover shows the
ghostly-looking Arlington Hotel in Slocan
City in 1940.

“We tried to include as many communi-
ties and themes as possible,” Greg says.
“We have included photos of First Nations,
streetscapes, sternwheelers, trains, mining
and logging, internment camps, and the
many other things that make up our recent
and not-so-recent past.”

The photos come from various archives
and private collections, and include many
that have never appeared in print before.

-

hook released

The book is published by Maclntyre
Purcell of Lunenberg, N.S. and sells for
$30. The Silvery Slocan Museum has or-
dered copies, which will be available for
sale when the museum reopens next spring
and at any events we might attend before
then. 4

2 ® THE SILVER STANDARD/FaLL 2021



(" ilvery Slocan Historical Society
"9y, board member Chad Townsend
“is working on a historical docu-
mentary film project.

He aims to respectfully share an in-
ternment-era story with ties to the for-
mer Turner Memorial United Church
in New Denver that he now owns.

This film seeks to explore how one
of the first Japanese Canadian UBC
graduates, Kyuichi Nomoto, who from
1936-42 was a successful Steveston min-
ister, suffered a breakdown while serv-
ing a burdened internment congreg-
ation in New Denver, and died soon af-
terwards in 1944 — ironically back in
the Vancouver area, from where his
community had been displaced.

Chad’s connection to this story
began somewhat accidently. While look-
ing for historic photos at the United
Church Archives, he discovered folders
of hand-typed letters to and from
Nomoto. This has led to much re-
search, and a personal travel to the
sites associated with his adult life and of
internment — the film will also portray
this modern-day journey of discovery.

CJIAPANESE UNITED CHUALH

NEW DENVER, B.C.
‘Dee. 19% 1943,

WS A 0

—

Tor: Congregation at the Turner Memorial United Church in New Denver, Dec. 19,
1943. This building still stands at 212 7th Ave. ABOVE: Kyuichi Nomoto (back row,
far left) is seen with his 1934 Union College of BC graduating class. — VANCOUVER
JAPANESE UNITED CHURCH ARCHIVES BCCA-2803-36 aAND BCCA-4-216779

This project has some financial sup-
port from the National Association of
Japanese Canadians Cultural Develop-
ment Fund, and Chad’s small team has
so far assembled a two minute film
trailer, which you can view at

https://tinyurl.com/3wbkcm9s
Chad has received much community
help so far, but would welcome more as
the project continues to develop.
Anyone interested can email him at
shearwater@yahoo.com. O

THE SILVER STANDARD/FALL 2021 ¢ 3



Friends of the Orchard seek to
preserve House of Joyful Tidings

By THE FrRIENDS OF THE ORCHARD

he House of Joyful Tidings, at 307
Kildare St., is one of the buildings

remaining from the original
Japanese-Canadian internment camp in
New Denver’s Orchard neighbourhood.

Of all the buildings from the original
camp, it seems to have been the only
one which continued into the postwar
years as a cross-cultural, multi-purpose
community meeting place.

Originally just another 1942-built, 28
by 14 foot hut designed to accommo-
date two families, it was adapted to
shared public use by the addition of a
small kitchen lean-to at the back, a lean-
to room at one end and a 20 by four foot
porch,

Before its eventual sale to a private
owner, it was apparently used as a
United Church meeting hall but over
the decades before, it served other de-
nominations and religions, as well as
hosting a range of community meetings
and recreational activities.

As such, it symbolizes the commu-
nity’s success in overcoming social prej-
udices and barriers and in sharing
assets respectfully and supportively.

If anything, the fact that this is one of
only three 1942 structures in the village
outside the Nikkei Internment Memo-
rial Centre that has retained its very
basic internment-era appearance adds
to its heritage and symbolic value.

The Friends of the Orchard in New
Denver believe that the House of Joyful
Tidings is a community asset well
worth preserving. The Friends are ask-
ing those who share their vision to con-
tact them. and to convey their support
to village council members.

Preserving the House of Joyful Tid-
ings, perhaps in Centennial Park beside
the proposed trail linking the Nikkei
Centre with the Kohan Reflection Gar-
den, would deliver several messages
about New Denver that the Friends
think are important:

e We are a community which real-
izes that its architecture is as influential
as its magnificent natural setting in
defining what we value.

e We value our eclectic mix of build-

ings because they are daily reminders
of the energy that goes into building a
resource-based economy, the courage
and patience to endure and ultimately
overcome injustices that come from
racial and cultural intolerance, and the
ahility to display individuality while liv-
ing simply and sustainably with defer-
ence to our environment.

e From its origins as an internment
hut, the House of Joyful Tidings be-
came a uniquely shared meeting place
in the Orchard, in effect, a tangible
symbol of how New Denver has chosen
mutual respect, integration and sharing
over mistrust, factionalism and selfish-
ness.

e As an interpretive centre in Cen-
tennial Park, the House of Joyful Tid-
ings could be both a symbol and a key
distribution point for communicating
our vision of who we are as a commu-
nity, as well as sub-themes related to
environmental quality, heritage
tourism, arts and culture, businesses
and services, and recreational opportu-
nities.

The Friends acknowledge that their
vision for the House of Joyful Tidings
entails a number of challenges, but be-
lieve they are not insurmountable with

The House of Joyful Tidings is seen on Oct. 19, 1952.

community support and shared efforts.

The property owner seems willing to
leave the building in its present location
until next April when he intends to start
building. This gives us more time to
raise awareness, find a new location and
seek funding and volunteer support.

The New Denver Centennial Park
master plan offers no place for the
building but does recognize the value of
preserving the village’s history. How-
ever, it also notes that more structures
in the park are not supported by public
comments on the plan drafts. If we can
win wider support for a business case
demonstrating that the House of Joyful
Tidings can be an asset to the commu-
nity with minimum expense to the vil-
lage, we may yet achieve the proposed
concept.

Our campaign to preserve the House
of Joyful Tidings has received encour-
agement from author Joy Kogawa and
from Ian Fraser, who has done much
heritage interpretation in the West
Kootenay and has undertaken to argue
our case to the village and others we
need to win over to the concept.

To learn more about the project, con-
tact Phil Whitfield at 250-371-0327 or
prwhitfield@gmail.com. Q

4 o THE SILVER STANDARD/FALL 2021



Scenes from the 2nd floor

The upper stovey of the Silvery Slocan Museum, formerly the bank manager’s residence, reopened
this summer after a closure of several years. Here is a look at some of the revised exhibits.

THE SILVER STANDARD/FALL 2021 ® 5



A rare postcard view of the now-vanished
town of Three Forks, mailed in 1912 from
Three Forks to a Mr. H.G. Beales of Spokane.
The message read “How would you like to
wade in this snow for a while, eh? Regards, i
Ollie” — GREG NESTEROFF COLLECTION il

e

*¢» Members are entitled to vote at
general meetings and will receive a
quarterly newsletter by email.

¢ Interested in volunteering? We can
always use help with work parties,
organizing events, fundraising, conducting

tours, managing our Facebook page,
maintaining our archives and exhibits, etc.

New member Q Existing member QO
Annual membership dues:

Single Q ($10) Family 0 ($15)
Three-year membership:

Single a (820) Family O (830)

Silvery Slocan Historical Society ® Box 301 ® New Denver, BC e VOG 1S0

Date

Mailing address:

Name 1

Phone

Email

Name 2

Phone

Email

6 ® THE SILVER STANDARD/FALL 2021




TELUS
Floor 10, 10020 -100 Street

/-';Z{BL/T E L U s Edmonton, Alberta

Canada T5J ON5
www.telus.com

October 7" 2021

Chief Administrative Officer Hillary Elliott
421 Lake Ave.

Silverton, BC V0G1S0

250-358-2472

helliott@silverton.ca

SUBJECT: Canada’s transition to Next Generation 9-1-1 Service

Dear Chief Administrative Officer Elliott,

On June 1, 2017, the Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commission (“CRTC") issued
Telecom Regulatory Policy 2017-182: Next-generation 9-1-1-Modernizing 9-1-1 networks to meet the
public safety needs of Canadians, setting out its determinations on the implementation and provision of
NG9-1-1 networks and services in Canada and its view that such a transition would provide Canadians
with access to new, innovative emergency services and capabilities.

In support of its decision, the CRTC has ordered TELUS, Bell and SaskTel to build NG9-1-1 networks to
replace the existing 9-1-1 network to support each company’s operating territory. The decommissioning
of the existing 9-1-1 network is currently set by the CRTC to occur on March 4, 2025. To this end, TELUS
is set to launch the NG9-1-1 network on March 1, 2022 and can begin onboarding Public Service Access
Points (“PSAPs”") and the respective municipalities they support soon thereafter.

In preparation for the NG2-1-1 transition, TELUS will need to update all current Local Governing Authority
(“LGA") Agreements for 9-1-1 with NG9-1-1 Agreements. Securing new NG9-1-1 LGA Agreements is a
critical landmark as the signing of these agreements will allow PSAPs to migrate onto TELUS' NG9-1-1
network. It is also important to note that from a technical and operational perspective, to onboard a PSAP
to the NG9-1-1 network will require that all the municipalities and First Nations and Metis governments it
serves to have signed the NG9-1-1 LGA with TELUS.

TELUS is looking forward to working with local municipalities, First Nations and Metis governments, and
PSAPs to support this exciting initiative that will enrich the public safety of Canadian citizens. We kindly
ask for your cooperation in identifying your prime contact and representative for NG9-1-1 matters,
by October 15, 2021, so that we may keep you informed.

In the meantime, should you have any questions or require further clarifications,

Yours truly,

ol Vg

Assunta Marozzi

LGA Relations Manager NG9-1-1
Telecom Policy & Regulatory Affairs
TELUS Communications Inc.

cc. Jeff Cruickshank, General Manager
CSD, Customer Solutions Delivery
TELUS Communications Inc.



e

BRITISH
COLUMBIA

October 29, 2021

Ref: 268537

Mayors and Regional District Chairs of British Columbia
Dear Mayors and Chairs:

| am pleased to announce that the Province of British Columbia recently launched the CleanBC Roadmap
to 2030. Building on actions in our 2018 CleanBC plan, the Roadmap to 2030 is a stronger, more
ambitious climate plan to reach our 2030 emissions reductions targets and build a strong, low-carbon
economy.

The Roadmap to 2030 includes actions across eight pathways including: low-carbon energy;
transportation; buildings; communities; industry; agriculture, aquaculture and fisheries; forest
bioeconomy; and negative emissions technologies. Highlights of the Roadmap include:
e New requirements to make all new buildings net-zero emissions by 2030
e A nation leading adoption of zero-emission vehicles with 90 percent ZEVs by 2030 and
100 percent by 2035
e An accelerated shift towards active transportation and public transit
e A commitment to increase the price on carbon pollution to meet or exceed the federal
benchmark, with supports for people and businesses
» Requirements for new industry projects to have enforceable plans to reach net-zero emissions
by 2050
e Stronger regulations that will nearly eliminate industrial methane emissions by 2035
e Increased clean fuel and energy efficiency requirements
e A Clean Transportation Action Plan will support emission reductions by focusing on
efficiency-first transportation options

Local governments across B.C. have consistently shown leadership and commitment to taking action on
climate change. Continuing the partnership between local governments and the province is key to
achieving our shared goals. The Roadmap to 2030 highlights the prominent role that communities have
in reaching those goals and commits to establishing a new program in 2022 to support local government
climate actions through flexible, predictable funding.

/2

Ministry of Municipal Affairs Office of the Minister Mailing Address: Location:
PO Box 9056 Stn Prov Govt Parliament Buildings
Victoria BC VBW 9E2 Victoria BC V8V 1X4



Mayors and Regional District Chairs of British Columbia
Page 2

The expanded climate actions in the Roadmap to 2030 will accelerate our transition to a net-zero future
and ensure we meet B.C.’s legislated greenhouse gas target of 40 percent below 2007 levels by 2030. To
learn more and to read the CleanBC Roadmap to 2030, please visit: www.cleanbc.gov.bc.ca and read the
news release.

I would also like to share with you the 2021 Climate Change Accountability Report. The report includes
detailed information on CleanBC progress over the 2020-2021 period to reduce carbon pollution,
prepare for climate impacts and create low-carbon economic opportunities for people across B.C. It also
includes emissions data for the 2019 reporting year.

Sincerely,

O

Josie Osborne
Minister

pc: Chief Administrative Officers



15

Hillary Eiliott
From: MCF Info MCF:EX -

Sent: October 29, 2021 3:44 PM

To: Hillary Elliott

Subject: Letter from Cory Heavener and Renaa Bacy, Office of the Provincial Director of Child

Welfare

VIA E-MAIL
Ref: 264010

His Worship Mayor Colin Ferguson and Council
Village of Silverton
E-mail: helliott@silverton.ca

Dear Mayor Ferguson and Council:

As the Provincial Director of Child Welfare and Provincial Director of Adoption and Permanency, we are
honoured to proclaim November as Adoption Awareness Month. This month is about raising awareness for
adoption in British Columbia and celebrating the families who have welcomed children and youth as permanent
members of their family.

Every child deserves the love and support of a nurturing family. November is about celebrating the adoptive
families that have made a difference in the lives of children by providing care, guidance, and a sense of
belonging. Adoptive families are committed to ensuring stability and sharing their love, whether that is in their
role as parent, sibling, or extended family member.

November is also about recognizing that there are children who are still waiting for permanent homes. There
continues to be a need for more adoptive families in British Columbia to offer their support to help children
grow and develop into their full potential.

There are many online resources, information, and support services that can help families who are considering
adoption. Adopt BC Kids is an online portal that allows British Columbians wishing to adopt children and
youth from foster care to complete an adoption application. The Adoptive Families Association of British
Columbia provides information and support services for families who wish to adopt now or in the future. We
encourage you to share these resources with your community members who are interested in learning more
about adoption or who are ready to open their hearts and homes.

Please join us in celebrating November as Adoption Awareness Month to recognize all the individuals who
have grown their family and their hearts through adoption, and to all those who may do so in the future. On
behalf of the Government of British Columbia, thank you for your continued leadership in supporting adoptive
families in your community.

Sincerely,
Cory Heavener Renaa Bacy
Assistant Deputy Minister and Provincial Director of Adoption

Provincial Director of Child Welfare



The Corporation of the Village of New Denver

P.O. Box 40, New Denver, BC VOG 150 e office@newdenver.ca f
PHONE (250) 358-2316 » FAX (250) 358-7251 @dﬁ }5/02{

October 1, 2021

Kootenay Savings Credit Union
Board of Directors

1199 Cedar Ave

Trail BC VIR 4B8

Attention: Forrest Drinnan, Chair
Roberta Schnider, Vice Chair
Mike Konkin, Director
Linda MacDermid, Director
Mark Martin, Director
Am Nagqvi, Director
Owen Morris, Director
Keith Smyth, Director

Dear Ladies & Gentlemen:

On behalf of our residents and business community, we want to share our concerns and lead the
discussions for improvement of Kootenay Savings Credit Union service delivery within our community
and surrounding area.

One common problem for our local residents, local business community and visitors to our town this
summer, was that the ATM machine was out of service almost every long weekend. You only get one
chance to make a good first impression, and having the ATM down left many tourists and visitors
disgruntled and with a bad impression, forcing them to leave New Denver to buy or receive goods and
services elsewhere. As you can imagine, this had a significant impact on our local business
community, which is already struggling due to Covid related challenges. This also left a negative view
of the Kootenay Savings Credit Union. As we work hard to try to get those visitors back again next
season, we need some assurance from you that this will not be an occurring problem next year.

Another area of concem is the business hours of our local branch. The reduced hours have impacted
the Village of New Denver, our business community, our school and our residents. We are the kind of
community who values and relies on one on one, face to face interaction. Reliable internet is still
relatively new in New Denver and the majority of our residents are skeptical, hesitant or completely
unable to bank this way. The fact that both wickets had clients at them and there were four more of us
waiting in line when I was at the bank this morning, indicates that this is a well used, much needed

service.



I also understand the KSCU Director for the New Denver/Nakusp area has resigned. What is your
timeline for replacing this position? We would like to have a local director who we can contact directly
with our concerns and who can advocate for us in your Board discussions.

We have brought up our concerns with our local branch manager on several occasions and have had
discussions with your CEO, Brent Tremblay and your Human Resources Department as well. Is the
Board of Directors aware of these discussions? Our concerns haven’t been addressed, nor have we

received any indication that they are even being considered.

Your Vision and Values state that you “constructively challenge the status quo” and that you are
“responsible to community”. The Council of the Village of New Denver looks forward to working
with you in challenging the status quo and being responsible to our community in order to solve these

issues.

Yours truly,

Lisa Scott
Chief Administrative Officer

Cc:  Slocan Valley Chamber of Commerce
Slocan Valley Economic Development Commission
Village of Fruitvale
Village of Kalso
Village of Salmo
Village of Silverton
Village of Radium Hot Springs



Administrative Report: Hillary Elliott, CAO

Village of Silverton Council
Regular Meeting — November 10, 2021

This administrative report covers the period October 9, 2021 to November 5, 2021 as to the
activities, functions, and meetings I have attended in my capacity as Chief Administrative
Officer for the Village of Silverton.

This month the CAO continued to be very busy with calls and research with other agencies
regarding COVID 19; most pertinently regarding the new information regarding re-opening
and its impacts on the Village operations/revenues, user groups, and facilities.

DUE TO THE CONSTANT CHANGES, COVID 19 continues to impact all aspects of the
Village and continues to add to the staff workload to keep up with current regulations and
requirements. This has been extensive with the requests for rentals, cancellations, and some
events being conducted.

The CAO continued filling two positions in the Village office and is now training the new
office assistant.

WELCOME to Katrina Volk, Administrative Assistant and to Jordan Harris, PW
Assistant,

CONGRATULATIONS AND WELCOME TO THE SILVERTON TEAM!
WE ARE HAPPY TO HAVE YOU!

Financial Operations/Capital Projects:

Staff continue working on capital and budgeted projects and supported the CFO in creating the
3" Quarterly Report, Item L2 on this agenda.

Functions:

The CAO has not had the time this past month to continue with the complex and onerous set up
for the Village of Silverton as a payee option at most Financial Institutions that must be
completed for each institution separately with each having a different process.

Staff require support to complete this process and are looking into finishing this important
administrative work for our residents and property owners to pay their utility and tax bills
easily and on time no matter where they are and what they might be doing.

This would then lead into staff creating options for electronic payments for other services such as
the Memorial Hall and other facilities. This is being requested more and more frequently from
Hall users, especially for those booking weddings and larger private events.

1|Page



K1

Projects:

Bylaw Officer Update

Staff continue to work on this initiative collaboratively with New Denver and Slocan. There was
a disruption in research and discussions due to staffing changes in New Denver. However, work
has resumed, and staff will provide an update when information is available.

RDI Climate Adaptation Projeci-New Phase

Staff will not be continuing this work due to lack of capacity.

Asset Management Phase 3 and Climate Adaptation Initiatives:

Staff continue to move this file forward as time permits.

Fire Resiliency 2020-2021 for Silverton, Slocan, and New Denver in Partnership with SIFCo

Great work Tri-Villages and SIFCO as we continue the great showcase work!!!

A garden is to be created on the south side of the Fire Hall that will be maintained by the Fire
Department.

Village Office Upgrades/Renovations

This will be part of 2022 budget discussions

Urban Forest/Tree Management Project

Work to be completed in Spring of 2022.

Wavfinding Project

This a fully funded project in partnership with the Province through the Rural Development
Division and staff person Richard Toperzcer.

Thank you Councillor Tanya Gordon for showcasing the beautiful and amazing assets of
Silverton! Our partners were very impressed a collected the data required.

Next is site data collection in the Lardeau valley.

More to come on this next month.

Lakeside Campground Living Quarters

This fully funded project in partnership with Kootenay Rockies Tourism in conjunction with
Destination BC and with the Villages of Slocan and New Denver, is scheduled to begin in Fall of
2021 after the closing of the campground this season on September 13, 2021; with completion in
Spring of 2022 before the traditional opening of the campground in May. The Building Permit

2|Page



Kl

was submitted by the CAO last week and will follow all building permit and other bylaw
requirements within the Village.

Staff are continuing to move this project forward and continued with administrative details to
keep the project moving.

Public Works:

Have continued to meet and worked with several of our project partners to complete the Council
initiatives for Fire Resiliency, ICABCCI, RDI Climate Adaptation, Asset Management, and
contractors for project timelines, plans and completion of 2021 capital projects and to compile all
the different information to meet with stakeholders, contractors and professionals required for
the various works.

Staff have been busy with work on:

e Carrying out the 2021 work plan

o Working with CBBC regarding infrastructure in the Village and on Village property for
internet backbone services

e Lakeside Campground living quarters project

e Boulevard clean up on Hume

e Compiling quotes and data for grant applications and capital projects in 2021/22

e Water capital project on-going

e Following up on numerous community needs and requests

e Staff training continues

Staff continue to be very busy regarding COVID 19, how it affects the present Village operations
and future measures to put in place to mitigate risks to operations for the “re-opening”. This is
on-going and continuing to change.

CAO Meetings:

Weekly meetings with Mayor Ferguson.

Meetings regarding council initiatives

Calls regarding contracts and communications with stakeholders and Village projects.
Met with staff regularly.

CAO Training/Courses:

None at this time.
Hillary Elliott, CAO

3|Page



NOTES

Revenues

Taxes have been billed and collected as expected.

Sale of Service revenue is higher than last year and ahead of budget. The main reason is that the campground
is back open for a full year after being only partially opened last year. The campground brought in $44,000
more in revenue than in 2020, and $25,000 more than budget.

Other revenue is down from last year due to 2020 having the sale of the campground logs and the insurance
recovery funding for the repairs at the Gallery. In addition, there was no gallery rent for the first half of 2021,
so this revenue will likely end up being under budget by year end.

Investment income is lower this year as the Bank of Canada cut interest rates to help fight the economic impact
of COVID, which has had a negative impact on interest income earnings.

Unconditional grants are in line with expectations after receiving the Small Communities Grant for 2021.

Conditional grants are in line with expectations at this point of the year. In addition to the annual gas tax grant,
municipalities received a 2021 bonus grant, which amounted to an additional $66,000 for the Village. There
was also grant funds received to cover 100% of the wildfire community resiliency program.

All other revenues appear to be in line with budget expectations and consistent with prior years.

Expenses

Capi

Opverall the Village is managing the expense portion of the operating budget within the expected parameters.

Please note that expenses are budgeted to occur evenly through the year. This has resulted in some
favourable/unfavourable expense variances due to timing differences. It is anticipated that these timing
differences will be resolved prior to year end.

General government expense are on par with last year and below budget. By-elections and related council
orientation costs came in the first half of the year, and under budget. The 2021 budget also includes IT devices
for Council that were invoiced in July. There has been some difficulty in procuring janitorial services this year,
which has helped reduce costs for 2021.

Protective services budget is primarily the ongoing Sifco fire mitigation work that is fully grant funded. As
work is completed, both conditional grant revenues and expenses are recorded. 2021 also contains budget and
activity for fire inspections which occur once every two years.

Transportation services is down from the prior year, primarily from reduced expenses from being shorthanded
in a public works assistant for much of the summer.

Recreation and cultural services expense is up slightly from 2020. In line with the increased revenues, the
campground also shows additional expenses in maintenance and attendant fees, though overall a net positive
for the Village. 2021 includes some budgeted work at the curling rink as directed by Worksafe BC. In
contrast, 2020 saw significant insurance covered repairs at the Gallery as well as work to remove trees at the
campground.

Other than the items noted above, there are no significant variances to report at the end of June, 2021.

tal

The Village completed its acquisition and installation of the generator. The project came in under budget,
further assisted with a contribution from Telus of $5,000.

Planning work on the campground redesign is underway, with renovation work planned for later in the year.

In the Water utility, the reservoir tank agitator has been acquired, with work now needed on electrical
installation of the solar power component.

Bear bins have been received, as has the mower side mulch for Public Works, with total costs for the two
projects under budget.

Discussions with the consultant regarding the urban forestry plan are coming up, with progress likely later in
the year.

Village office renovations have been put on hold for further research, given the costs of construction currently,
and the need to evaluate heating requirements in the building. Similarly, work on acquiring a commercial
stove for Memorial Hall has been delayed by cost concerns and renovations required to remove the current
stove.



VILLAGE OF SILVERTON

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - OPERATING FUND
For the Period Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES

Taxes
Sales of Services
Other revenue
Investment income
Grants - unconditional
Grants - conditional
Water user fees

Total revenue

EXPENSES

General Government
Protective services
Transportation services
Environmental health services
Recreation and cultural services
Water utility operations

Total expense

NET REVENUE (EXPENSE)

CAPITAL

General - office /generator/bear cans
- equipment
- campground/stove/other
- Memorial building upgrade
-Sidewalk/computer upgrade
Water

NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

2021 2020

YTD Total Balance % YTD Total Balance %
Actual Budget Remaining Rem Actual Budget Remaining Rem
$ 169817 § 169,562 § 255) - % 163,093 § 163,202 $ 109 - %
82,469 55,690 (26,779) (48)% 37,150 54,175 17,025 31 %
9,327 16,960 7,633 45% 32,418 13,060 (19,358) 148)%
1,434 1,000 (434) (43)% 2,737 1,500 (1,237) (82)%
297,000 297,952 952 - % 297,952 291,153 (6,799) @)%
213,390 696,982 483,592 69 % 88,737 585,266 496,529 85 %
94313 93.413 (900) _(1)% 90,153 87.320 (2,833) _(3)%
867.750 1.331.559 463809 _35% 712.240 1.195.676 483436 _40%
198,918 293,531 94,613 32% 193,053 256,858 63,805 25%
157,987 684,806 526,819 77 % 62,688 529,225 466,537 88 %
85,099 150,764 65,665 44 % 94,877 163,895 69,018 42%
16,028 23,815 7,787 33 % 18,053 28,183 10,130 36 %
49671 55,900 6,229 11 % 44,656 73,400 28,744 39 %
33.575 69.462 35.887 _52% 29818 71,102 41.284 _58 %
541,278 1,278.278 737,000 _58 % 443,145 1,122,663 679.518 _61%
326472 53.281 273,191 513 % 269.095 73.013 196.082 269 %
73,059 153,000 79,941 52 % - = - V0 %
9,731 9,000 731) @)% - 2 = V/0 %
10,553 105,000 94,447 90 % - = = V/0 %
. . = - % 34,627 80,700 46,073 57 %
- - - - % 1,943 24,000 22,057 92 %

36.166 50.000 13.834 _28% - 35.000 35.000 =
129,509 317,000 187491 59% 36,570 139.700 103,130 _74 %
$__196963 $__(263.719) $__460,682 175% $__ 232,525 $__ (66.687) $__299.212 449 %




L1

Silverton Village of Silverton Policy P-1

PERSONNEL POLICY
British Columbia TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT

Category: Personnel Policy Title: Terms of Employment Consolidation
Policy Number: P - 1
Effective Date: XXXX Resolution No.: XXX

Revision: Replaces Personnel Policy, Terms of Employment P — 1 consolidation

APPLICATION — This Policy applies to all employees, except those Officers appointed by Council,
and whom are governed by separate Employnient Agreements, and by Employees who are
governed by separate Employment Agreements. Employment Agreements should be
complimentary to this and other Village Policies.

1. POSTING - All positions in the Village, whether new positions or vacancies in existing ones,
shall be posted. Postings shall contain a brief description on the nature of the work involved,
what qualifications are required, rate of pay and any other information considered relevant,

2. CANDIDATES - Candidates should be fully trained for the position they are applying for. This
shall include any post-secondary education, professional certification, or operational tickets. If a
candidate does not have the full qualifications for the position posted, but is otherwise suited for
hire, and there are no other suitable candidates, consideration shall be given to hiring that
candidate, provided there is a commitment to become fully qualified as per Policy P-9.

3. LOCAL PREFERENCE - Preference will be given to applicants who live in the Village of
Silverton or close proximity. Even though an applicant from another municipality may have
superior qualifications, the local applicant will be considered for hire providing that the
applicant’s: qualifications are adequate and he/she commits to becoming fully qualified as above
noted; and there is no known reason why they should not be hired.

Responses shall be‘mailed to those persons interviewed for a posted position. The Village shall
not respond to general employment applications submitted at will.

References shall be checked by the appropriate authority in each case; and candidates may be
subject to a Criminal Records Review search.

4. LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT - Letters of appointment shall clearly indicate the date of
hiring, the probationary period, rate of pay, hours of work, and other terms/conditions of
employment.

5. FAMILY MEMBERS - Under the Human Rights Code Part 1, Section13, it is discriminatory to
not hire a person because of family status. However, to avoid perceived favouritism, a
prospective employee should not be hired by an immediate family member. An employee with a

62



family member on Council should not report directly to a committee on which that family
member sits.

Council Members must abide by Sections 100 - 102 of the Community Charter and excuse
themselves from matters brought before Council concerning a family member.

6. PROBATION - Permanent appointment as a full or part time employee of the Village shall be
subject to satisfactory performance during the period of probation. The duration of the
probationary period will be six months unless otherwise agreed in writing. Failure to pass
probation can result in an extension of probation or termination.

7. HOURS OF WORK

(a) Full Time — For the purposes of this policy, a “full time” employee is one that works 24 or more
hours per week on a regular scheduled basis, or one who is deemed “full time” by an employment
agreement, or a Council Resolution.

(b) Part Time — A “part time” employee works a regular scheduled work week however on average
less than full time. (less than 24 hrs/week)

e Part time employees are not paid for designated holidays (see statutory holidays below) however
are paid time and - if they work on a designated holiday.

(c) Casual — A “Casual Employee” works in a position having no specified schedule
or duration. There is no guarantee of hours per day or per week and is only contacted when work
is available. A casual employee is not entitled to benefits or holiday accrual.

(d) Time Sheets - Each employee must complete a time sheet, sign it and give it to their Department
Head, at the conclusion of each specified pay-period.

(e) Overtime — shall be paid in accordance with the BC Employment Standards Act (more than 8
hrs in one day or 40 hrs in one week) unless an employment agreement states otherwise, or unless
an averaging agreement is made.

Employees required to work on a Stat Holiday shall be paid at a rate of time and one half for the
first 12 hrs, then at double time. A Ministry Brochure is attached for clarity.

Overtime can be banked and accrued and either taken as time off or paid out but cannot be carried
over into the following year. See Sec. 14(c) for banking vacation time.

8. PAY- DAYS - Pay-days shall be every second week.

9. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS - The Village will deduct and submit all normal deductions, E.I.,
C.P.P. and Income Tax, from employees’ paycheques.

10. PAY INCREMENTS - pay and other remuneration will be reviewed by Council annually during
budget discussions

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — Unless otherwise agreed by written employment contract, and
subject to qualification criteria and conditions as required by the benefit providers, “Full Time”
employees are entitled to benefits.

63



Benefits include Superannuation, Weekly Indemnity, Extended Health Plan, Dental Insurance,
Group Life Insurance, Accidental Death and Dismemberment, Medical Services Plan and Vision
Care

12. LEAVES OF ABSENCE - Leave of Absence shall be defined as any period of time that an
employee is absent on regularly scheduled work-days; and may be leave with or without pay.

Leave of Absence can be for training and development, emergency leave, bereavement leave,
court attendance/jury duty, or maternity/paternity leave.

Any employee desiring a leave of absence for any reason must request so in writing through the
Department Head to the CAO. Should the request be refused, the employee has the right of
appeal to Council in writing.

When an employee overstays their leave of absence without permission from the CAO, their
position with the Village may be forfeited, unless just cause, in the opinion of the CAQO, can be
shown for overstaying.

13. MUNICIPAL and STAT HOLIDAYS — The Village recognizes the following as paid
Statutory holidays for all full time employees

(a) New Year’s Day, Labour Day, Good Friday, Thanksgiving Day, Remembrance Day Victoria
Day, Christmas Day, Canada Day, B.C. Day, Family Day, and National Day for Truth and
Reconciliation.

(b) The Village acknowledges that Easter Monday and Boxing Day are NOT “Statutory
Holidays” however they are given and provided as paid Municipal Holidays.

(c) When any of the above-noted Stat Holidays falis on a regular scheduled day(s) of rest, the
following work day or days shall be deemed to be the Stat holiday.

14. ANNUAL VACATIONS, subject to any employment agreement;

(a) Part Time and Casual employees will receive annual vacations on a pro-rated basis, based on
regular weekly hours calculated as a minimum of twice the normal work weeks regular hours or
(4%). (An employee working a regular schedule of 2 days/week would be entitled to 4 days
holiday time etc.) or 4%.

(b) Full Time Employees will be entitled to annual vacation as follows;

Years of Service Days of Entitlement
After 1 year 2 weeks (based on normal work week)
After 3 years 3 weeks (9 days for office staff)

After 5 years 3 weeks plus 1 day = 10 days

After 7 years 3 weeks plus 2 days = 11days

After 9 years 4 weeks = 12 days

After 11 years 4 weeks plusl day = 13 days

After 13 years 4 weeks plus 2 days = 14 days

After 15 years 5 weeks = 15 days

64



(¢) Banking vacation time - Upon written request to the CAO, an employee may bank up to five (5)

days of unused vacation leave from one year to the next. Any banked vacation time must be used
up in the year it is brought forward to.

(d) Credited sick time during vacation - An employee who is on vacation leave, and becomes ill

while on vacation leave, can apply to have vacation leave credited back, provided the employee
has unused sick leave accumulation that will cover the period of iliness.

15. SICK LEAYVE - Definition - Sick leave is defined as the period of time an employee is absent from
work with full pay by virtue of being sick, disabled, exposed to a contagious disease, under
examination or treatment of a physician/chiropractor/dentist, or because of an accident.

16.

(a) Immediate family - Sick leave may also be used for absences needed for the care of
members of the employee’s immediate family (husband, wife, son, daughter, or parent and
includes a common law spouse or partner that has lived in a common law relationship in the same
house for at least one year) - who may be at home recovering from illness/injury and requiring
attention.

(b)  Full-time employees - shall be eligible for six (6) days of sick leave per year, non-
accumulative. Unused sick leave shall be forfeited at the end of each year.

(c) Part—time employees — are eligible for one normal work week/year of sick time/year.
(If an employee works 3 days per week on a regular basis, they would be eligible for 3 days/year
etc.

OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE - While on leave of absence without pay, an employee shall
have the opportunity to remain on the Village benefit package if the employee pays 100% of the
premiums for said benefits in advance of taking leave. In the case of Maternity/Paternity Leave,
applicable benefits premiums shall be paid by the employer.

All employees obtaining an authorized leave of absence must first use all of their accumulated
vacation leave before commencing the leave of absence.

(a) Training & Development: An employee shall be granted leave of absence with pay when
writing examinations where the subjects of examination lead to qualifications/certifications
which are directly concerned with Village duties.

(b) Emergency Leave: Provided the necessary sick leave credits are available, an employee will
be granted leave of absence without loss of pay (charged to sick leave credits) to attend to a
member of the employee’s immediate family who is either seriously ill or injured, and no
other family member is available.

(¢) Bereavement Leave: An employee will be granted leave of absence with pay, for a
maximum of three (3) working days, for the purpose of attending the funeral and/or making
the funeral arrangements on the death of an immediate relative (spouse/common-law spouse,
parent, father/mother-in-law, brother/sister, brother/sister-in-law, son/daughter, son/daughter-
in-law, grandparent/grandchild). Where the bereavement occurs outside Silverton and
extensive travel is required, an additional two (2) days leave with pay may be granted.

65



17. VOLUNTEER EMERGENCY SERVICE

(a) It is agreed that in exchange for the provision of volunteer emergency service, and so
long as there is no “double dipping” eg. where PEP or the RD is paying the cost,

(b) when an employee acts as a volunteer Emergency Service Personnel, he/she is not
required to use his/her holiday or banked time, or otherwise lose pay or incur personal
costs when attending an emergency event. Overtime incurred as a result of attendance at

such events will be taken as time in lieu as approved by the CAO.

(c) The Village will pay reasonable costs, including without limitation, costs of tuition,
textbooks, travel, meals and accommodation to attend at an educational or professional

conferences, approved by the CAO, subject to Council policy on travel allowances.

(d) That attendance at emergency or training events will be recorded on the time sheets and
reported to Council on a regular basis.
This Policy replaces Policies P-1, consolidated, Adopted by Council  Resolution #
058/2013 on April 23, 2013, and includes amendments on March 18, April 15, 2014, and

October 26, 2021.

Mayor CAO

66



L2

Village of Silverton

Regular Meeting of Silverton Village Council November 10, 2021

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is to present information for Council consideration and discussion
regarding the new legislative changes to allow for more options regarding electronic meetings
and electronic attendance in meetings.

Background

DEFINITIONS

Electronic Meetings: if authorized by bylaw, are meetings where all members of a council or
board may participate electronically (videoconferencing, audioconferencing, telephone).

Electronic Participation: if authorized by bylaw, allows for a hybrid meeting where some
members of council or a board attend in person, and other members attend by electronic means.

Village of Silverton Current Electronic Meeting Rules:
Electronic Meetings

8. (D) Provided the conditions set out in Subsection 128(2) of the Community Charter
are met,
(a) a member of Council may participate, electronically in Council meetings
if the member is unable because of illness or injury or is with leave of the
Council, and provided that the Corporate Officer is able to secure the
electronic equipment to facilitate the meeting;

(b) the member presiding at the meeting must be in attendance, in the meeting
room.

(2) No more than one member of Council at one time may participate at a Council
meeting under Section 8(1)(a);

(3) No more than one member of a Council Committee at one time may participate at
a Council Committee meeting under Section 8(1)(a).




L2

Legislative Considerations

1. New Sections added under Part 5, Division 2 - Council Proceedings, Community Charter

Electronic regular council meetings

128 (1)If authorized by a procedure bylaw and the requirements of subsection (2) are met,
regular council meetings may be conducted by means of electronic or other
communication facilities.

(2)The following rules apply in relation to a regular council meeting referred to in
subsection (1):
(a)the meeting must be conducted in accordance with the applicable procedure
bylaw;
(b)in the procedure bylaw, a council must
(1)provide for advance public notice of the following:
(A)the way in which the meeting is to be conducted by means of
electronic or other communication facilities;
(B)the place where the public may attend to hear, or watch and
hear, the proceedings that are open to the public, and
(ii)establish the procedures for giving that notice; .
(c)the facilities must
(i)enable the meeting's participants to hear, or watch and hear, the
meeting,
(i1)except for any part of the meeting that is closed to the public, enable
the public to hear, or watch and hear, the meeting, and
(iii)except for any part of the meeting that is closed to the public, enable
the public to hear, or watch and hear, the meeting at the specified place,
and a designated municipal officer must be in attendance at the
specified place.
(3)Members of council who are participating in a meeting conducted in accordance with
this section are deemed to be present at the meeting.

Electronic special council meetings

128.1 (1)If authorized by a procedure bylaw and the requirements of subsection (2) are met,
special council meetings may be conducted by means of electronic or other
communication facilities.

(2)The following rules apply in relation to a special council meeting referred to in
subsection (1):
(a)the meeting must be conducted in accordance with the applicable procedure
bylaw;




L2

(b)the notice under section 127 (2) must include notice of the way in which the
meeting is to be conducted by means of electronic or other communication
facilities and the place where the public may attend to hear, or watch and hear,
the proceedings that are open to the public;

(c)the facilities must

(i)enable the meeting's participants to hear, or watch and hear, the
meeting, and

(i1)except for any part of the meeting that is closed to the public, enable
the public to hear, or watch and hear, the meeting at the specified place,
and a designated municipal officer must be in attendance at the
specified place.

(3)Members of council who are participating in a meeting conducted in accordance with
this section are deemed to be present at the meeting.

Electronic council committee meetings

128.2 (D)If authorized by a procedure bylaw and the requirements of subsection (2) are met,
council committee meetings may be conducted by means of electronic or other
communication facilities.

(2)The following rules apply in relation to a council committee meeting referred to in
subsection (1):

(a)the meeting must be conducted in accordance with the applicable procedure
bylaw;

(b)in the procedure bylaw, a council must provide for advance public notice of the
way in which the meeting is to be conducted by means of electronic or other
communication facilities and establish the procedures for giving that notice;

(c)the facilities must enable the meeting's participants to hear, or watch and hear,
the meeting;

(d)except for any part of the meeting that is closed to the public, the facilities
must enable the public to hear, or watch and hear, the meeting.

(3)Members of a council committee who are participating in a meeting conducted in
accordance with this section are deemed to be present at the meeting.

Electronic participation by members in council and council committee meetings

128.3 (1)If authorized by a procedure bylaw and the requirements of subsection (2) are met, a
member of council or a council committee who is unable to attend in person at a
regular council meeting, a special council meeting or a council committee meeting
may participate in the meeting by means of electronic or other communication




L2

facilities.

(2)The following rules apply in relation to a meeting referred to in subsection (1):
(a)the meeting must be conducted in accordance with the applicable procedure
bylaw;
(b)the facilities must enable the meeting's participants to hear, or watch and hear,
the participation of the member;
(c)except for any part of the meeting that is closed to the public, the facilities must
enable the public to hear, or watch and hear, the participation of the member.

(3)Members of council or a council committee who are participating under this section in
a meeting conducted in accordance with this section are deemed to be present at the
meeting.

Discussion

In the past, on occasion, a member of Council has scheduled time away and was given
permission to attend the Council meetings via videoconferencing.

However, when another member of Council had a sudden conflict/personal matter, they were not
afforded the same consideration as the bylaw only allowed for one Council member to attend
electronically.

Should Council afford all council members the same option equitably, or should only one
member at a time be allowed the privilege? Is the first Council member to ask afforded the
electronic option?

How would staff choose if two council members made the same request at the same time?

Is it the member that requested first be the one allocated the electronic option? If a Council
member is on holiday or ill or at other meetings on behalf of the Village should there be other
considerations?

Should it be a general allowance for any Council member makes the request?

If a member of Council has work that takes them away from the community, should they be
afforded the ability to attend council meetings and represent their community?

The example of Premier Horgan and his prognosis has made his ability to attend in person not
feasible, however, he will be in attendance electronically. Should similar situations be a
consideration?

Should an individual need to receive council permission to attend electronically, as currently
worded in the Council Procedural bylaw for electronic attendance?

Should electronic meetings be allowed? When? Should seasonal conditions be a consideration?




L2

Should the public and delegations or others attending council meeting be permitted to attend
electronically? If so, should this always be an option? Sometimes? If only sometimes, what
would those conditions be?

Should delegations or guests invited to the meeting have the option of attending electronically?

Pros and Cons

Pros

Electronic meetings and participation can allow for more inclusive/accessible meeting
attendance/participation.

Cons

Technology can be challenging, can fail, and have financial costs.

Options

1. Direct staff to write a draft bylaw for electronic attendance at all council meetings and
committee meetings.

2. Direct staff to write a draft bylaw for electronic attendance at council meetings and
committee meetings with specified conditions.

3. Direct staff to write a draft bylaw for electronic meetings for all council meetings and
committee meetings.

4. Direct staff to write a draft bylaw for electronic meetings for council meetings and committee
meetings with specified conditions.

5. Direct staff to write a draft bylaw for electronic meetings and electronic attendance for all

council meetings and committee meetings.

6. Do nothing.

Recommendation(s)

None at this time.

Hillary Elliott
CAQO, Village of Silverton




